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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements
 

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)
 

  
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
  (unaudited)   (As adjusted)  

ASSETS       
CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 88,946  $ 102,192 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents   147,229   301,550 
LNG inventory   10,699   — 
Accounts and interest receivable   9,424   3,630 
Prepaid expenses and other   12,124   9,220 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   268,422   416,592 
NON-CURRENT RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   117,770   138,483 
NON-CURRENT RESTRICTED U.S. TREASURY SECURITIES   —   20,829 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET   2,236,269   2,170,158 
DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS, NET   50,840   55,688 
GOODWILL   76,844   76,844 
INTANGIBLE LNG ASSETS   6,106   6,106 
LNG HELD FOR COMMISSIONING   9,767   9,923 
ADVANCES UNDER LONG-TERM CONTRACTS   2,697   10,705 
OTHER   17,070   14,754 

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 2,785,785  $ 2,920,082 
LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT         

CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Accounts payable  $ 1,319  $ 1,220 
Accrued liabilities   56,044   61,883 
Other   26,238   3,030 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   83,601   66,133 
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF DISCOUNT   2,667,567   2,750,308 
LONG-TERM DEBT—RELATED PARTIES, NET OF DISCOUNT   348,753   332,054 
DEFERRED REVENUE   35,500   37,500 
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   14,599   8,141 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES   —   — 
DEFICIT         

Stockholders’ equity (deficit)         
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued   —   — 
Common stock, $.003 par value         

Authorized: 240,000,000 and 120,000,000 shares at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively         
Issued and outstanding: 56,539,000 and 52,297,000 shares at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively   170   157 

Treasury stock: 267,000 and 179,000 shares at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, at cost   (576)   (496)

Additional paid-in-capital   325,489   300,033 
Accumulated deficit   (919,548)   (823,756)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (112)   (154)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT   (594,577)   (524,216)
Non-controlling interest   230,342   250,162 

TOTAL DEFICIT   (364,235)   (274,054)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT  $ 2,785,785  $ 2,920,082 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 
3



 

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

 
 

  
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
  2009   2008   2009   2008  
REVENUES     (As adjusted)      (As adjusted)  

LNG receiving terminal revenues  $ 38,201  $ —  $ 38,201  $ — 
Oil and gas sales   839   1,207   1,573   2,293 
Marketing and trading   (1,156)   (293)   (656)   98 
Other   75   —   75   — 

TOTAL REVENUES   37,959   914   39,193   2,391 
                 
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES                 

LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expense   91   2,566   —   9,282 
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense   9,251   416   18,029   416 
Oil and gas production and exploration costs   77   138   164   300 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization   12,795   3,333   24,857   5,617 
Restructuring charges   —   78,564   —   78,564 
General and administrative expense   15,422   19,364   33,219   50,043 

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES   37,636   104,381   76,269   144,222 
                 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS   323   (103,467)   (37,076)   (141,831)
Loss from equity method investments   —   (3,000)   —   (4,800)
Derivative gain (loss), net   762   (11,536)   3,324   (12,366)
Gain on early extinguishment of debt   45,363   —   45,363   — 
Interest expense, net   (61,959)   (25,612)   (115,209)   (50,212)
Interest income   388   4,801   1,199   14,405 
Other income (loss)   46   (34)   (17)   (71)
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST   (15,077)   (138,848)   (102,416)   (194,875)
INCOME TAX PROVISION   —   —   —   — 
LOSS BEFORE NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST   (15,077)   (138,848)   (102,416)   (194,875)
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST   2,026   2,305   6,624   3,670 
NET LOSS  $ (13,051)  $ (136,543)  $ (95,792)  $ (191,205)
                 
Net loss per common share—basic and diluted  $ (0.25)  $ (2.90)  $ (1.91)  $ (4.06)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—basic and diluted   51,576   47,129   50,121   47,053 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

  Cheniere Energy, Inc. Common Stockholders     

  
 

Common Stock   Treasury Stock   
Additional

Paid-in-   Accumulated  

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive  
Non-

controlling   
Total

Equity  
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Loss   Interest   (Deficit)  
Balance—December 31, 2008   52,297  $ 157   179  $ (496)  $ 181,289  $ (785,389)  $ (154)  $ 250,162  $ (354,431)

Cumulative effect of accounting
change   —   —   —   —   118,744   (38,367)   —   —   80,377 

Balance—December 31, 2008 (as adjusted)   52,297  $ 157   179  $ (496)  $ 300,033  $ (823,756)  $ (154)  $ 250,162  $ (274,054)
Issuances of stock   3,985   12   —   —   16,212   —   —   —   16,224 
Issuances of restricted stock   345   1   —   —   (1)   —   —   —   — 
Forfeitures of restricted stock   (65)   —   65   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Stock-based compensation       —   —   —   9,244   —   —   —   9,244 
Treasury stock acquired   (23)   —   23   (80)   1   —   —   —   (79)
Foreign currency translation   —   —   —   —   —   —   42   —   42 
Loss attributable to non-controlling

interest   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (6,624)   (6,624)
Distributions to non-controlling

interest   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (13,196)   (13,196)
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (95,792)   —   —   (95,792)

Balance—June 30, 2009   56,539  $ 170   267  $ (576)  $ 325,489  $ (919,548)  $ (112)  $ 230,342  $ (364,235)
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 
 

  Six Months Ended June 30,  
       2009        2008  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     (As adjusted)  

Net loss  $ (95,792)  $ (191,205)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Gain on early extinguishment of debt   (45,363)   — 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization   24,857   5,617 
Amortization of debt issuance and debt discount   14,896   13,973 
Non-cash compensation   8,645   15,905 
Non-cash restructuring charges   —   17,144 
Restricted interest income on restricted cash and cash equivalents   (2,774)   (13,105)
Non-cash derivative loss   223   6,196 
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents   49,158   54,926 
Non-controlling interest   (6,624)   (3,670)
Other   15,447   (155)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts and interest receivable   1,657   16,716 
Prepaid expenses   (3,128)   (15,473)
Deferred revenue   21,738   — 
LNG inventory   (10,699)   — 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   116   (14,031)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (27,643)   (107,162)

         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES         

LNG terminal and pipeline construction-in-process, net   (81,175)   (440,782)
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents   71,088   410,457 
Use of (investment in) restricted treasury securities   —   21,717 
Purchases of LNG commissioning, net of amounts transferred to LNG terminal construction-in-process   (14,184)   (65,416)
Purchases of intangible and fixed assets, net of sales   (140)   (3,542)

Oil and gas property, net of sales
  (530)   — 

Advances under long-term contracts, net of amounts transferred to LNG terminal construction-in-progress   —   (5,118)
Other   4,286   (9,218)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES   (20,655)   (91,902)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES         

Proceeds from the Bridge Loan   —   95,000 
Distributions to non-controlling interest   (13,196)   (13,196)
Debt issuance costs   (33)   (12,503)
Use of (investment in) restricted cash and cash equivalents   78,391   13 
Debt repurchase   (30,030)   — 
Purchase of treasury shares   (80)   (4,406)
Sale of common stock   —   241 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES   35,052   65,149 
         
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (13,246)   (133,915)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—beginning of period   102,192   296,530 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—end of period  $ 88,946  $ 162,615 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 1—Basis of Presentation
 

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Cheniere Energy, Inc. have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of
the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In our opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary for a
fair presentation, have been included. As used herein, the terms “Cheniere,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or
controlled subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.
 

We have evaluated subsequent events through August 6, 2009.
 

For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.
 
Recent Accounting Developments
 

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Position (“FSP”) Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement) (“FSP APB 14-1”), effective as of January 1, 2009, applying it retrospectively to all
periods presented.  FSP APB 14-1 clarifies that convertible debt instrument that may be settled in cash upon conversion (including partial cash settlement) do not fall within the
scope of paragraph 12 of APB No. 14, Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants, and specifies that issuers of such instruments should
separately account for the liability component and the equity component represented by the embedded conversion option in a manner that will reflect that entity’s nonconvertible
debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods.  Upon settlement, the entity shall allocate consideration transferred and transaction costs incurred to the
extinguishment of the liability component and the reacquisition of the equity component.
 

Our 2¼% Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 (“Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes”) are impacted by this change.  The fair value of the embedded conversion
option at the date of issuance was determined to be $134.0 million and has been recorded as a debt discount to the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, with a corresponding
adjustment to Additional Paid-in Capital.  This debt discount will be amortized over the terms of the underlying Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
 

As a result of the adoption of FSP APB 14-1, adjustments have been made to the financial statements of prior periods as required by SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections.  The following table summarized the incremental effect of the adoption of FSP APB 14-1 on our Consolidated Statements of Operations and per-share
amounts for three and six months ended June 30, 2008 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

  Three Months Ended June 30, 2008   Six Months Ended June 30, 2008  

  
Prior to
adoption   

Effect of
adoption   

As
adjusted   

Prior to
adoption   

Effect of
adoption   

As
adjusted  

Increase/(decrease):                   
Interest expense  $ (21,402)  $ (4,210)  $ (25,612)  $ (41,251)  $ (8,961)  $ (50,212)
Net loss   (132,333)   (4,210)   (136,543)   (182,244)   (8,961)   (191,205)

                         
Basic and diluted earnings per share  $ (2.81)  $ (0.09)  $ (2.90)  $ (3.87)  $ (0.19)  $ (4.06)
 

The incremental effect of the adoption of FSP APB 14-1 on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2008 is presented as follows (in thousands):

  December 31, 2008  

  
Prior to
adoption   

Effect of
adoption   

As
adjusted  

Increase/(decrease):          
Debt issuance costs  $ 57,676  $ (1,988)  $ 55,688 
Long-term debt, net of discount   2,832,673   (82,365)   2,750,308 
Additional paid-in capital   181,289   118,744   300,033 
Accumulated deficit   (785,389)   (38,367)   (823,756)

 
Debt issuance costs decrease $2.0 million, representing the cumulative adjustment caused by a portion of debt issuance costs being reclassified to additional paid-in capital

pursuant to FSP APB 14-1.
 

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principles was $38.4 million, recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings as of January 1, 2009, from the retrospective
increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2008.
 

During the second quarter of 2009, we identified an error related to the January 1, 2009 adoption of FSP APB 14-1.  Upon review, management determined that our
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes have an embedded conversion option that falls within the scope of FSP APB 14-1. Under the guidance of Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”)
No. 99, Materiality, we have determined that this error was not material to any of our prior reports on an annual or interim period.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

NOTE 2—Non-controlling Interest
 

As a result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51,
effective as of January 1, 2009, we present non-controlling interests (previously shown as minority interest) as a component of equity on our Consolidated Balance Sheets and
Consolidated Statement of Equity (Deficit). The adoption of SFAS 160 did not have any other material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
 

We have consolidated certain joint ventures and partnerships because we have a controlling interest in these ventures. Therefore, the entities’ financial statements are
consolidated in our consolidated financial statements and the ownership interests of others in these entities’ equity is recorded as non-controlling interest. The following table sets
forth the components of our non-controlling interest balance attributable to third-party investors’ interest (in thousands):
 
Net proceeds from Cheniere Partners’ issuance of common units (1)  $ 98,442 
Net proceeds from Holdings’ sale of Cheniere Partners common units (2)   203,946 
Distributions on Cheniere Partners’ non-controlling interest   (53,220)
Non-controlling interest share of loss of Cheniere Partners   (18,826)
Non-controlling interest at June 30, 2009  $ 230,342 
 
(1) In March and April 2007, we and Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”) completed a public offering of 15,525,000 Cheniere Partners common units

(“Cheniere Partners Offering”). Through the Cheniere Partners Offering, Cheniere Partners received $98.4 million in net proceeds from the issuance of its common units
to the public. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) SAB No. 51, Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary, provided guidance on accounting by the parent
for issuances of a subsidiary’s common equity to unaffiliated parties. Under SAB No. 51, a company was able to elect an accounting policy of recording a gain or loss on
the sale of common equity of a subsidiary equal to the amount of proceeds received in excess of the carrying value of the parent’s investment. SFAS No. 160 established
new accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary.

(2) In conjunction with the Cheniere Partners Offering, Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”) sold a portion of the Cheniere Partners common units held by it to the
public, realizing proceeds net of offering costs of $203.9 million, which included $39.4 million of net proceeds realized once the underwriters exercised their option to
purchase an additional 2,025,000 common units from Holdings. Due to the subordinated distribution rights on our subordinated units, we have recorded those proceeds as
a non-controlling interest.

 
NOTE 3—Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and U.S. Treasury Securities
 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and U.S. Treasury securities are composed of cash that has been contractually restricted as to usage or withdrawal, as follows:
 
Sabine Pass LNG Receiving Terminal Construction Reserve
 

In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass LNG”) issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,032.0 million of Senior Secured Notes consisting of $550.0
million of 7¼% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 (the “2013 Notes”) and $1,482.0 million of 7½% Senior Secured Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes” and collectively with the 2013
Notes, the “Senior Notes”). In September 2008, Sabine Pass LNG completed an additional $183.5 million, before discount, of 2016 Notes whose terms were identical to the
previously outstanding 2016 Notes. The additional issuance and the previously outstanding 2016 Notes are treated as a single series of notes under the indenture governing the
Senior Notes (“Sabine Pass Indenture”) (See Note 9—“Long-Term Debt (including related parties)”). Under the terms and conditions of the Senior Notes, Sabine Pass LNG was
required to fund a cash reserve account for approximately $987 million to pay the remaining costs to complete the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. The cash accounts are
controlled by a collateral trustee, and therefore, are shown as restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of June 30, 2009, the Sabine Pass LNG
receiving terminal construction reserve account balance was zero. As of December 31, 2008, the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal construction reserve account balance was
$71.1 million; of which $27.4 million of the construction reserve account related to accrued construction costs had been classified as part of current restricted cash and cash
equivalents and $43.7 million of the construction reserve account related to remaining construction costs had been classified as a non-current asset on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

Senior Notes Debt Service Reserve
 

As described above, Sabine Pass LNG consummated private offerings of an aggregate principal amount of $2,215.5 million Senior Notes (See Note 9—“Long-Term Debt
(including related parties)”). Under the Sabine Pass Indenture governing the Senior Notes, except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until
certain conditions are satisfied. There must be on deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the
number of elapsed months since the last semi-annual interest payment. In addition, there must be on deposit in a permanent debt service reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-
annual interest payment of approximately $82.4 million. Distributions are permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding requirements, a fixed charge coverage ratio test of
2:1 and other conditions specified in the Sabine Pass Indenture. As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we classified $13.7 million as current restricted cash and cash
equivalents as these amounts related to the payment of interest due within twelve months. As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we classified the permanent debt service
reserve fund of $82.4 million as non-current restricted cash and cash equivalents. These cash accounts are controlled by a collateral trustee, and therefore, are shown as restricted
cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
Cheniere Partners Distribution Reserve
 

At the closing of the Cheniere Partners Offering, Cheniere Partners funded a distribution reserve of $98.4 million, which was invested in U.S. Treasury securities (See Note
2—“Non-controlling Interest”). The distribution reserve, including interest earned thereon, is available to pay quarterly distributions of $0.425 per common unit for all common
units, as well as related distributions to Cheniere Partners’ general partner, through the distribution made in respect of the quarter ending September 30, 2009. The U.S. Treasury
securities were acquired at a discount from their maturity values equal to an average of approximately 4.87% per year. As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we classified
$34.9 million and $12.0 million as non-current restricted cash that may be utilized to pay quarterly distributions, respectively. In addition, as of June 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008, we classified zero and $20.8 million as non-current restricted U.S. Treasury securities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets that may be utilized to pay quarterly distributions,
as these securities had original maturities greater than three months.
 
TUA Reserve
 

Under the terms and conditions of the 2008 Convertible Loans described below in Note 9—“Long-Term Debt (including related parties)”, we were required to fund a
reserve account with $135.0 million to pay Cheniere Marketing, LLC’s (“Cheniere Marketing”) obligations under its Terminal Use Agreement (“TUA”) with Sabine Pass LNG
and as additional collateral for the 2008 Convertible Loans. We continue to fund this account using quarterly distributions received from Cheniere’s common, subordinated and
general partner units in Cheniere Partners. The cash account is controlled by a collateral trustee, and therefore, is shown as restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. In June 2009, through an amendment of the 2008 Convertible Loans we moved $65.2 million out of the TUA reserve account into unrestricted cash and cash
equivalent account. In addition, we made Cheniere Marketing’s TUA payment to Sabine Pass LNG leaving the balance of the TUA reserve account at zero as of June 30, 2009, as
part of current restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2008, we classified $62.8 million as part of current restricted cash and
cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
Other Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the $133.5 million and $197.1 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents is primarily related to cash and cash
equivalents held by Sabine Pass LNG that is considered restricted to Cheniere. In addition, due to various other contractual restrictions $0.5 million and $1.0 million had been
classified as non-current cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

 
9



 

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

NOTE 4—LNG Held for Commissioning
 

Liquified natural gas (“LNG”) purchased for commissioning activities is recorded at cost and classified as a non-current asset on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as LNG
held for commissioning. As the LNG held for commissioning is used to cool down the LNG receiving terminal and establish LNG heel in the LNG receiving terminal, we
capitalize the portion used. The LNG used in the commissioning process is capitalized net of amounts received from the sale of natural gas.
 

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had recorded $9.8 million and $9.9 million, respectively, as LNG held for commissioning on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets.
 
NOTE 5—LNG Inventory
 

LNG inventory is recorded at cost and is subject to the lower of cost or market adjustments at the end of each period. As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had
recorded $10.7 million and zero, respectively, as LNG inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
NOTE 6—Property, Plant and Equipment
 

Property, plant and equipment consists of LNG terminal construction-in-process expenditures, LNG site and related costs, investments in oil and gas properties, and fixed
assets, as follows (in thousands):
 

  
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
LNG TERMINAL COSTS       

LNG receiving terminal  $ 1,078,168  $ 927,298 
LNG terminal construction-in-process   582,001   643,340 
LNG site and related costs, net   2,592   2,579 
Accumulated depreciation   (21,461)   (7,813)

Total LNG terminal costs   1,641,300   1,565,404 
NATURAL GAS PIPELINE         

Natural gas pipeline plant   563,475   562,893 
Natural gas pipeline construction-in-process   8,060   7,937 
Pipeline right-of-ways   18,415   18,221 
Accumulated depreciation   (15,699)   (8,454)

Total natural gas pipeline costs   574,251   580,597 
OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES, successful efforts method         

Proved   3,620   3,439 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization   (1,480)   (1,043)

Total oil and gas properties, net   2,140   2,396 
FIXED ASSETS         

Computer and office equipment   5,796   5,693 
Furniture and fixtures   5,316   5,315 
Computer software   12,211   12,128 
Leasehold improvements   9,258   9,208 
Other   1,197   1,254 
Accumulated depreciation   (15,200)   (11,837)

Total fixed assets, net   18,578   21,761 
         
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET  $ 2,236,269  $ 2,170,158 
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

LNG Terminal Costs
 

Costs associated with the construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal that have not been placed into service have been capitalized as construction-in-process
since the date the project satisfied our criteria for capitalization. For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized $20.4 million and $47.6 million of interest
expense related to the construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, respectively. In March 2006, our Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal satisfied the criteria for
capitalization.  Accordingly, costs associated with the initial site work for the Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal have been capitalized.  For the six months ended June 30,
2009 and 2008, we capitalized zero and $0.6 million, respectively, of interest expense related to this construction project.
 

We began depreciating equipment and facilities associated with the initial 2.6 Bcf/d of sendout capacity and 10.1 Bcf of storage capacity of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving
terminal when they were ready for use in the third quarter of 2008. The Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is depreciated using the straight-line depreciation method applied to
groups of LNG receiving terminal assets with varying useful lives. The identifiable components of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal with similar estimated useful lives have
a depreciable range between 10 and 50 years.
 
Natural Gas Pipeline Costs
 

Our natural gas pipeline business is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and
the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and we have determined that our pipelines have met the criteria set forth in SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation. For the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we capitalized zero and $17.0 million, respectively, of Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”)
to our natural gas pipeline projects.
 
Fixed Assets
 

Our fixed assets are recorded at cost and are depreciated on a straight-line method based on the estimated lives of the individual assets or groups of assets. Depreciation
expense related to our property, plant and equipment totaled $24.9 million and $5.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
 
Asset Retirement Costs
 

Our asset retirement obligations relate primarily to the retirement of certain LNG receiving terminal and natural gas pipeline assets and obligations related to right-of-way
agreements. In accordance with SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, we determined that due to an indeterminate life of such assets, the fair value of the
retirement obligation is not reasonably estimable. A liability for such asset retirement obligation will be recorded when a fair value is determinable.
 
NOTE 7—Investment in Limited Partnership
 

We account for our 30% limited partnership investment in Freeport LNG Development, L.P. (“Freeport LNG”) using the equity method of accounting. As of June 30, 2009
and December 31, 2008, we had unrecorded cumulative suspended losses of $19.6 million and $27.2 million, respectively, related to our investment in Freeport LNG as the basis
in this investment had been reduced to zero.
 

In January 2009 and April 2009, Freeport LNG distributed $3.9 million and $2.7 million to us, respectively.
 

In March 2008 and May 2008, we received cash call notices from Freeport LNG requesting that we provide further financial support due to higher than expected
commissioning and performance testing costs. During the six months ended June 30, 2008, we funded the cash calls and recorded $4.8 million of additional suspended losses in
Freeport LNG. In addition, Freeport LNG distributed $4.8 million to us in October 2008.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 
 

The financial position of Freeport LNG at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 and the results of Freeport LNG’s operations for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and
2008 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

  June 30,2009   December 31, 2008  
Current assets  $ 67,507   $ 72,834  
Construction-in-process   75,109    62,768  
Property, plant and equipment, net   867,034    887,388  
Other assets   30,759    31,608  

Total assets   1,040,409    1,054,598  
         

Current liabilities   15,832    61,317  
Notes payable   1,119,793    1,090,086  
Deferred revenue and other deferred credits   13,540    15,401  
Partners’ capital   (108,756 )   (112,206 )

Total liabilities and partners’ capital  $ 1,040,409   $ 1,054,598  
 
 

  
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
  2009   2008   2009   2008  
Income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 32,971  $ (27,180)  $ 65,541  $ (33,157)
Net income (loss)   12,792   (27,459)   25,450   (33,684)
Cheniere’s 30% equity in net income (loss) from limited partnership (1)   3,838   (8,238)   7,635   (10,105)
  
(1) During the three month periods ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, we did not record $3.8 million and ($8.2) million, respectively, and during the six months ended June 30,

2009 and 2008, we did not record $7.6 million and ($10.1) million of the net income (losses) for such periods, respectively, as the basis in this investment had been
reduced to zero and because we did not guarantee any obligations and had not been committed to provide any further financial support.

 
NOTE 8—Accrued Liabilities
 

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

  
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
LNG terminal construction costs  $ 26,657  $ 26,768 
Accrued interest expense and related fees   16,179   17,305 
Pipeline construction costs   3,274   5,102 
Payroll   5,581   8,717 
Other accrued liabilities   4,353   3,991 

Accrued liabilities  $ 56,044  $ 61,883 
 
NOTE 9—Long-Term Debt (including related parties)
 

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, our long-term debt, including related party debt, consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

  
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
     (As adjusted)  
Long-term debt (including related parties):       

Senior Notes (including related parties)  $ 2,215,500  $ 2,215,500 
2007 Term Loan   400,000   400,000 
2008 Convertible Loans (including related parties)   276,959   261,393 
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes   204,630   325,000 

Total long-term debt   3,097,089   3,201,893 
Debt discount:         

Senior Notes  (including related parties)   (34,819)   (37,166)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes   (45,950)   (82,365)

Total debt discount   (80,769)   (119,531)
         
Long-term debt (including related parties), net of discount  $ 3,016,320  $ 3,082,362 
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited) 
 
Sabine Pass LNG Senior Notes
 

In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,032.0 million of Senior Notes, consisting of $550.0 million of the 2013 Notes and
$1,482.0 million of the 2016 Notes. In September 2008, Sabine Pass LNG issued an additional $183.5 million, before discount, of 2016 Notes whose terms were identical to the
previously outstanding 2016 Notes. The net proceeds from the additional issuance of the 2016 Notes were $145.0 million. One of the lenders making the additional issuance of the
2016 Notes was GSO Capital Partners, L.P. (“GSO”), an affiliate of two members of Cheniere’s board of directors. GSO, a related party, did not receive any fees in connection
with the additional issuance of 2016 Notes. The additional issuance and the previously outstanding 2016 Notes are treated as a single series of notes under the Sabine Pass
Indenture. Sabine Pass LNG placed $100.0 million of the $145.0 million of net proceeds from the additional issuance of the 2016 Notes into a construction account to pay
construction expenses of cost overruns related to the construction, cool down, commissioning and completion of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. In addition, Sabine Pass
LNG placed $40.8 million of the remaining net proceeds into an account in accordance with the cash waterfall requirements of the security deposit agreement Sabine Pass LNG
entered into in connection with the Senior Notes, which are used by Sabine Pass LNG for working capital and other general business purposes.
 

Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year. The Senior Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a
security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets. Under the Sabine Pass Indenture, except for permitted tax distributions,
Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions are satisfied. There must be on deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the
semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the number of elapsed months since the last semi-annual interest payment. In addition, there must be on deposit in a permanent debt
service reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-annual interest payment of approximately $82.4 million. Distributions are permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding
requirements, a fixed charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and other conditions specified in the Sabine Pass Indenture. During the six months ended June 30, 2009, Sabine Pass LNG
made distributions of $149.3 million after satisfying all the applicable conditions in the Sabine Pass Indenture.
 

As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we have presented $71.8 million and $70.7 million, respectively, as part of Long-Term Debt—Related Party on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets because we have related parties holding a portion of this debt.
 
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
 

In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325.0 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes to qualified institutional buyers
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”). The notes bear interest at a rate of 2¼% per year. The notes are convertible at any time into
our common stock under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 28.2326 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equal to a conversion price of
approximately $35.42 per share. As of June 30, 2009, no holders had elected to convert their notes at the conversion rate.
 

We may redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10
trading days the volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five consecutive trading days. In the event of such
redemption, we will make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury
securities rate plus 50 basis points. The indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.
 

As discussed in Note 1—Basis of Presentation, we adopted FSP APB 14-1 on January 1, 2009.  The following table summarizes the liability component of the Convertible
Senior Unsecured Notes as follows (in thousands):

  
June 30,

2009  
December 31,

2008  
    (As adjusted)  
Principal amount  $ 204,630  $ 325,000 
Unamortized discount   (45,950)   (82,365)
Net carry amount  $ 158,680  $ 242,635 
 

The unamortized discount will be amortized through the maturity of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.  The Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes have a maturity of
August 2012.  Interest expense for the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, including the debt discount amortization for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 was $12.3
million and $13.3 million, respectively.  The effective interest rate as of June 30, 2009 was 10.9% for the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.

 
During the second quarter of 2009, we reduced debt by exchanging $120.4 million aggregate principal amount of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes for a combination

of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million common shares, reducing our principal amount due in 2012 to $204.6 million at June 30, 2009. As a result of the
exchange, we recognized a gain of $45.4 million that we have reported as gain on early extinguishment of debt in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2009.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

2007 Term Loan
 

In May 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC (“Cheniere Subsidiary”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement (“2007
Term Loan”). Borrowings under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9¾% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid principal amount of the 2007
Term Loan outstanding and is payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on May 31, 2012.
The 2007 Term Loan is secured by a pledge of our 135,383,831 subordinated units in Cheniere Partners and our equity interests in the entities that own our 30% interest in
Freeport LNG.
 
2008 Convertible Loans
 

In August 2008, we entered into a credit agreement pursuant to which we obtained $250.0 million in convertible term loans (“2008 Convertible Loans”). The 2008
Convertible Loans will mature in 2018, but the lenders can require prepayment of the loan for 30 days following August 15, 2011, 2013 and 2015, and upon a change of control.
The 2008 Convertible Loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum, except during the occurrence of an event of default during which time the rate of interest will be
14% per annum. Interest is due semi-annually on the last business day of January and July. At our option, until August 15, 2011, accrued interest may be added to the principal on
each semi-annual interest date. The aggregate amount of all accrued interest to August 15, 2011 will be payable upon the maturity date. The 2008 Convertible Loans are secured by
Cheniere’s rights and fees payable under management services agreements with Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners, by Cheniere’s common units in Cheniere Partners, by the
equity and non-real property assets of Cheniere’s pipeline entities, by the equity of various other subsidiaries and certain other assets and subsidiary guarantees. The principal
amount of $250.0 million may be exchanged for newly-created Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock”), with voting rights
limited to the equivalent of 10,125,000 shares of common stock. The exchange ratio is one share of Series B Preferred Stock for each $5,000 of outstanding borrowings, subject to
adjustment. The aggregate preferred stock is exchangeable into 50 million shares of common stock at a price of $5.00 per share pursuant to a broadly syndicated offering. No
portion of any accrued interest is eligible for conversion into Series B Preferred Stock. We placed $135.0 million of the borrowings under the 2008 Convertible Loans into a TUA
reserve account to pay a reservation fee and operating fee under Cheniere Marketing’s TUA. We utilized $95.0 million of the borrowings under the 2008 Convertible Loans to
repay a bridge loan. The remaining borrowings were utilized to pay for interest on the bridge loan, to pay expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the 2008 Convertible
Loans and consideration of other strategic alternatives and to fund working capital and general corporate needs of Cheniere and its subsidiaries.
 

As long as the 2008 Convertible Loans are exchangeable for shares of Series B Preferred Stock or shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the holders of a
majority of the 2008 Convertible Loans and Series B Preferred Stock, acting together, shall have the right to nominate two individuals to the Company’s Board of Directors, and
together with the Board of Directors, a third nominee, who shall be an independent director.  In addition, one of the lenders is Scorpion Capital Partners LP (“Scorpion”), an
affiliate of one of the Company’s directors.  As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we have presented $277.0 million and $261.4 million, respectively, as part of Long-term
Debt—Related Party on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
NOTE 10—Financial Instruments
 

We entered into financial derivatives to hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows attributable to the future sale of natural gas from our LNG
commissioning cargoes (“LNG commissioning cargo derivatives”) and for the future sale of natural gas that is imported by Cheniere Marketing for domestic marketing
("commercial LNG derivatives"). Commercial LNG is recorded at cost as LNG Inventory and is subject to the lower of cost or market adjustments at the end of each period. The
net cost of our LNG commissioning cargoes (LNG commissioning cargo purchase price less natural gas sales proceeds) is capitalized on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as it is
directly related to the LNG receiving terminal construction and is incurred to place the LNG receiving terminal in usable condition. However, changes in the fair value of our
commercial LNG and LNG commissioning cargoes derivatives are reported in earnings because they are not able to be designated as a qualifying hedge in accordance with SFAS
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

 
Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, and SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. As a result of the adoption, we elected not to measure any additional financial assets or liabilities at fair value, other than
those which were recorded at fair value prior to adoption.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited) 
The estimated fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged currently between willing parties. The fair value of our

commodity futures contracts are based on inputs that are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, resulting in Level 1 categorization of such measurements.
The following table (in thousands) sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities at June 30, 2009:
 

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Instruments
(Level 1)   

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)   

Total Carrying
Value  

Derivative assets  $ 1,006  $ —  $ —  $ 1,006 
 

Derivative assets reflect natural gas swaps entered into to hedge the cash flows from the sale of commercial LNG and excess LNG purchased for commissioning.
 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires the disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments including those financial
instruments for which the SFAS No. 159 fair value option was not elected. The carrying amounts reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The carrying amounts of the fair values of
financial instruments for which SFAS No. 159 was not elected are as follows:
 

Financial Instruments (in thousands):
 

  June 30, 2009   December 31, 2008  

  
Carrying
Amount   

Estimated
Fair Value   

Carrying
Amount   

Estimated
Fair Value  

        (As adjusted)   (As adjusted)  
2013 Notes (1)  $ 550,000  $ 471,625  $ 550,000  $ 412,500 
2016 Notes, net of discount (1)   1,630,681   1,341,236   1,628,334   1,204,967 
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, net of discount (2)   158,680   47,604   242,635   37,608 
2007 Term Loan (3)   400,000   400,000   400,000   400,000 
2008 Convertible Loans (4)   276,958   276,958   261,393   261,393 
Restricted U.S. Treasury securities (5)   —   —   20,829   22,901 
  
(1) The fair value of the Senior Notes, net of discount, is based on quotations obtained from broker-dealers who made markets in these and similar instruments as of June 30,

2009 and December 31, 2008, as applicable.
(2) The fair value of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes is based on the closing trading prices on June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, as applicable.
(3) The 2007 Term Loan bears interest at a fixed rate; therefore, the estimated fair value is expected to vary with changes in market interest rates. At June 30, 2009 and

December 31, 2008, the fair value of the debt instrument was stated at its carrying amount due to it being a non-trading instrument with no liquid market.
(4) The 2008 Convertible Loans bear interest at a fixed rate; therefore, the estimated fair value is expected to vary with changes in market interest rates. At June 30, 2009 and

December 31, 2008, the fair value of the debt instrument was stated at its carrying amount due to it being a non-trading instrument with no liquid market.
(5) The fair value of our restricted U.S. Treasury securities is based on quotations obtained from broker-dealers who made markets in these and similar instruments as of

December 31, 2008.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited) 
NOTE 11—Income Taxes
 

From our inception, we have reported a net operating loss (“NOL”) for both financial reporting purposes and for international, federal and state income tax reporting
purposes. Accordingly, we are not presently a taxpayer and have not recorded a net liability for international, federal or state income taxes in any of the periods included in the
accompanying financial statements. Our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 include no income tax benefits.
 

Our NOL carryforwards for financial and tax reporting purposes are subject to expiration between 2011 and 2029. During the fourth quarter of 2008, largely due to the
increased level of trading activity in our shares, we experienced an ownership change described in Internal Revenue Code Section 382 that will subject a significant portion of our
existing tax NOL carryforwards to annual utilization limitations. However, we do not believe that the utilization limitations provided for in Section 382 will significantly affect our
ability to ultimately utilize our tax NOL carryforwards. As provided for in SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, at December 31, 2008 a valuation allowance was
established due to the uncertainty associated with our ability to fully realize the tax benefits related to our NOL carryforwards and our other deferred tax assets.
 
NOTE 12—Net Loss Per Share
 

Net loss per share (“EPS”) is computed in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects potential dilution and is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period increased by the number of additional common shares that would have been
outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued. Basic and diluted EPS for all periods presented are the same since the effect of our options, warrants and unvested
stock is anti-dilutive to our net loss per share under SFAS No. 128.
 

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands except for
loss per share):

 

  
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
  2009   2008   2009   2008  
     (As adjusted)      (As adjusted)  
Weighted average common shares outstanding:             

Basic   51,576   47,129   50,121   47,053 
Dilutive common stock options (1)   —   —   —   — 
Dilutive Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (2)   —   —   —   — 
Dilutive 2008 Convertible Loans (3)   —   —   —   — 
Diluted   51,576   47,129   50,121   47,053 

                 
Basic loss per share  $ (0.25)  $ (2.90)  $ (1.91)  $ (4.06)
Diluted loss per share  $ (0.25)  $ (2.90)  $ (1.91)  $ (4.06)

 
(1) Stock options, phantom stock and unvested stock representing securities that could potentially dilute basic EPS in the future that were not included in the diluted

computation because they would have been anti-dilutive for the three and six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, were 10.7 million and 8.3 million, respectively.
(2) Common shares of 5.8 million and 9.2 million issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2009 and

2008, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted because the computation of diluted net loss per share utilizing the “if-converted” method would be anti-
dilutive.

 (3) Common shares of 50.0 million issuable upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible Loans were not included in the computation of diluted because the computation of
diluted net loss per share utilizing the “if-converted” method would be anti-dilutive.

 
16



 
 

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)

NOTE 13—Comprehensive Loss
 

The following table is a reconciliation of our net loss to our comprehensive loss for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):
 

  
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
  2009  2008   2009  2008  
    (As adjusted)     (As adjusted)  
Net loss  $ (13,051)  $ (136,543)  $ (95,792)  $ (191,205)
Other comprehensive loss items:                 

Foreign currency translation   104   (53)   42   (63)
Comprehensive loss  $ (12,947)  $ (136,596)  $ (95,750)  $ (191,268)

 NOTE 14—Supplemental Cash Flow Information and Disclosures of Non-Cash Transactions
 

The following table provides supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):
 

 Six Months Ended June 30,  
 2009  2008  
Cash paid during the period for interest, net of amounts capitalized  $ 89,378  $ 36,968 
Construction-in-process and debt issuance additions funded with accrued liabilities   20,989   103,135 
 
NOTE 15—Business Segment Information
 

We have three operating business segments: LNG receiving terminal business, natural gas pipeline business and LNG and natural gas marketing business. These operating
segments reflect lines of business for which separate financial information is produced internally and are subject to evaluation by our chief operating decision makers in deciding
how to allocate resources.
 

Our LNG receiving terminal business segment is in various stages of developing three LNG receiving terminal projects along the U.S. Gulf Coast at the following locations:
Sabine Pass LNG, approximately 90.6% owned, in western Cameron Parish, Louisiana on the Sabine Pass Channel; Corpus Christi LNG, 100% owned, near Corpus Christi,
Texas; and Creole Trail LNG, 100% owned, at the mouth of the Calcasieu Channel in central Cameron Parish, Louisiana. In addition, we own a 30% limited partner interest in a
fourth project, Freeport LNG, located on Quintana Island near Freeport, Texas.
 

Our natural gas pipeline business segment is in various stages of developing natural gas pipelines to provide access to North American natural gas markets.
 

Our LNG and natural gas marketing business segment is seeking to develop a portfolio of long-term, short-term, and spot LNG purchase agreements, and will focus on
entering into business relationships for the domestic marketing of natural gas that is imported by Cheniere Marketing as LNG to the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 
 

The following table summarizes revenues, net income (loss) from operations and total assets for each of our operating segments (in thousands):

  
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
  2009   2008   2009   2008  
     (As adjusted)      (As adjusted)  
Revenues:             

LNG receiving terminal  $ 95,655  $ —  $ 158,068  $ — 
Natural gas pipeline   236   352   506   352 
LNG & natural gas marketing   (58,346)   (607)   (122,163)   (226)
Corporate and other (1)   414   1,169   2,782   2,265 

Total consolidated  $ 37,959  $ 914  $ 39,193  $ 2,391 
                 
Net income (loss):                 

LNG receiving terminal  $ 41,316  $ (26,585)  $ 56,281  $ (40,167)
Natural gas pipeline   (16,015)   (3,694)   (33,255)   (4,063)
LNG & natural gas marketing   (63,057)   (58,003)   (131,234)   (68,165)
Corporate and other (1)   24,705   (48,261)   12,416   (78,810)

Total consolidated  $ (13,051)  $ (136,543)  $ (95,792)  $ (191,205)
                 
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets:                 

LNG receiving terminal  $ 35,471  $ 150,643  $ 89,583  $ 293,120 
Natural gas pipeline   841   227,646   910   142,243 
LNG & natural gas marketing   69   2,112   69   540 
Corporate and other (1)   203   5,759   241   5,058 

Total consolidated  $ 36,584  $ 386,160  $ 90,803  $ 440,961 
 
 

  
June 30,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
Total assets:     (As adjusted)  

LNG receiving terminal  $ 2,074,757  $ 2,191,671 
Natural gas pipeline   584,630   590,995 
LNG & natural gas marketing   144,835   136,138 
Corporate and other (1)   (18,437)   1,278 

Total consolidated  $ 2,785,785  $ 2,920,082 
 
(1) Includes corporate activities, oil and gas exploration, development and exploitation activities and certain intercompany eliminations. Our oil and gas exploration,

development and exploitation operating activities have been included in the corporate and other column due to the lack of a material impact that these activities have on
our financial statements. Amounts were restated to include oil and gas exploration, development and exploitation activities within the corporate and other segment as of
December 31, 2008 and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

NOTE 16—Share-Based Compensation
 

We have granted options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and phantom stock to employees, consultants and outside directors under the Cheniere Energy, Inc.
Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan (“1997 Plan”) and the Cheniere Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (“2003 Plan”). We
account for our share-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123R which requires that all share-based payments to employees be recognized in the financial statements based
on their fair values at the date of grant. The calculated fair value is recognized as expense (net of any capitalization) over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures,
using the straight-line method under SFAS No. 123R. We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee class and historical
experience.
 

For the three and six months ended June 30 2009, the total share-based compensation expense recognized in our net loss was $4.7 and $8.6 million (net of $0.3 million and
$0.6 million capitalized), respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, the total share-based compensation expense recognized in our net loss was $3.1 and
$15.9 million (net of $0.3 million and $0.8 million capitalized), respectively.
 

The total unrecognized compensation cost at June 30, 2009 relating to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 1997 Plan and 2003 Plan,
before any capitalization, was $32.3 million and is expected to be recognized over 3.75 years, with a weighted average period of 1.15 years.
 

We received total proceeds from the exercise of stock options of zero and $0.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
 
Phantom Stock
 

On February 19, 2009, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors (“the Compensation Committee”) cancelled the 2008–2010 Phantom Incentive
Compensation Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) originally approved by the committee on May 25, 2007. The Incentive Plan provided an incentive compensation vehicle for named
executive officers and certain key employees based on the achievement of earnings and stock price appreciation goals. It allowed for cash and equity compensation components.
Prior to the February cancellation of the Incentive Plan, all participants agreed to the forfeiture and cancellation of shares of phantom stock awards granted to them.
 

On February 25, 2009, the Compensation Committee made phantom stock grants of 5,545,000 shares pursuant to our 2003 Plan to all Cheniere executives, designated
employees and one consultant. On June 12, 2009, the Compensation Committee made additional phantom stock grants of 800,000 shares to our Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to the approval from our stockholders to increase the maximum number of shares granted to any one individual under our 2003 Plan during a calendar year from 1.0 million shares
to 3.0 million shares. The shares were awarded under a time based plan and a performance based plan. The time based plan includes 1,565,000 shares and provides for a three year
graded vesting schedule. One-third of the compensation vests on each of December 15, 2009, December 15, 2010 and December 15, 2011. The performance based plan includes
4,780,000 shares and divides each grant into three equal parts providing incentive compensation based on separate vesting terms. Vested shares of phantom stock will be settled in
cash or in shares of common stock, as determined by the Compensation Committee. In June 2009, we obtained approval from our shareholders to increase the number of shares of
common stock available for issuance under our 2003 Plan from 11.0 million common shares to 21.0 million common shares, which provided the required number of common
shares needed to satisfy vested phantom stock.  In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, we transferred the fair valued compensation liability associated with these phantom grants into
additional paid-in capital.  Using a Monte Carlo simulation, fair values were calculated as of June 12, 2009 for the time and performance based plans.  For the six months ended
June 30, 2009, a total of $2.2 million was recognized as compensation expense relating to time and performance based phantom stock grants. We will account for these phantom
grants similar to restricted stock as we intend to settle and historically have settled these types of instruments with common shares.  The total unrecognized compensation cost at
June 30, 2009 relating to non-vested phantom stock, before any capitalization, was $17.3 million and is expected to be recognized over 2.5 years, with a weighted average period of
1.36 years.
 
Stock Options
 

We estimate the fair value of stock options under SFAS No. 123R at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes valuation model, which is consistent with the valuation
technique we previously utilized to value stock options for the footnote disclosures required under SFAS No. 123. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of grant. The expected term (estimated period of time outstanding) of stock options granted is based on the “simplified” method of estimating the expected term
for “plain vanilla” stock options allowed by SAB No. 107, Valuation of Share-based Payment Agreements for Public Companies, and varies based on the vesting period and
contractual term of the stock options. Expected volatility for stock options granted is based on an equally weighted average of the implied volatility of exchange traded stock
options on our common stock expiring more than one year from the measurement date, and historical volatility of our common stock for a period equal to the stock option’s
expected life. We have not declared dividends on our common stock. We did not issue any options to purchase shares of our common stock during the six months ended June 30,
2009.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

The table below provides a summary of option activity under the combined plans as of the six months ended June 30, 2009:
 

  Option   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term   

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  
  (in thousands)         (in thousands)  
Outstanding at January 1, 2009   1,206  $ 28.96       
Granted   —   —       
Exercised   —   —       
Forfeited or Expired   (313)   36.02       
Outstanding at June 30, 2009   893  $ 26.48   5.6   — 
                 
Exercisable at June 30, 2009   839  $ 25.72   5.5   — 
 
Stock and Non-Vested Stock
 

We have granted stock and non-vested (restricted) stock to employees, executive officers, outside directors and consultants under the 2003 Plan. Under SFAS No. 123R,
grants of non-vested stock are accounted for on an intrinsic value basis. The amortization of the calculated value of non-vested stock grants is accounted for as a charge to
compensation and an increase in additional paid-in-capital over the requisite service period. During the six months ended June 30, 2009, 314,000 shares having a four-year graded
vesting were issued to our employees in the form of non-vested restricted stock awards.
 

The table below provides a summary of the status of our non-vested shares under the 2003 Plan as of the six months ended June 30, 2009:
 

  
Non-Vested

Shares   

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value
Per Share  

  (in thousands)     
Non-vested at January 1, 2009   3,724  $ 3.46 
Granted   314   — 
Vested   (481)   8.86 
Forfeited   (66)   5.68 
Non-vested at June 30, 2009   3,491  $ 2.37 
 
Share-based Plan Descriptions and Information
 

Our 1997 Plan provides for the issuance of stock options to purchase up to 5.0 million shares of our common stock, all of which have been granted. Non-qualified stock
options were granted to employees, contract service providers and outside directors.
 

In June 2009, we obtained approval from our stockholders to increase the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under our 2003 plan from 11.0 million
shares to 21.0 million shares. These awards may be in the form of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, purchased stock, restricted (non-vested) stock, bonus
(unrestricted) stock, stock appreciation rights, phantom stock and other share-based performance awards deemed by the Compensation Committee to be consistent with the
purposes of the 2003 Plan. To date, the only awards made by the Compensation Committee have been in the form of non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock
units and phantom shares.
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ITEM 2.    MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This quarterly report contains certain statements that are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements, other than statements of
historical fact, included herein or incorporated herein by reference are “forward-looking statements.” Included among “forward-looking statements” are, among other things:
 
 • statements relating to the construction and operation of each of our existing or proposed liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) receiving terminals or our existing or

proposed pipelines, or expansions or extensions thereof, including statements concerning the completion or expansion thereof by certain dates or at all, the costs
related thereto and certain characteristics, including amounts of regasification and storage capacity, the number of storage tanks and docks, pipeline deliverability
and the number of pipeline interconnections, if any;

 
 • statements regarding future levels of domestic natural gas production, supply or consumption; future levels of LNG production or LNG imports into North America;

sales of natural gas in North America; and the transportation, other infrastructure or prices related to natural gas, LNG or other energy sources or hydrocarbon
products;

 
 • statements regarding any financing transactions or arrangements, or ability to enter into such transactions or arrangements, whether on the part of Cheniere or any

subsidiary or at the project level;
 
 • statements regarding any terminal use agreement (“TUA”) or other commercial arrangements presently contracted, optioned or marketed or potential arrangements

to be performed substantially in the future, including any cash distributions and revenues anticipated to be received and the anticipated timing thereof, and statements
regarding the amounts of LNG regasification capacity that are, or may become subject to, TUAs or other contracts;

 
 • statements regarding counterparties to our TUAs, construction contracts and other contracts;
 
 • statements regarding any business strategies, any business plans or any other plans, forecasts, projections or objectives, including potential revenues, capital

expenditures, cost savings and strategic options, any or all of which are subject to change;
 
 • statements regarding legislative, governmental, regulatory, administrative or other public body actions, requirements, permits, investigations, proceedings or

decisions;
 
 • statements regarding our anticipated LNG and natural gas marketing activities; and
 
 • any other statements that relate to non-historical or future information.
 

These forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of terms and phrases such as “achieve,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “plan,”
“potential,” “project,” “propose,” “strategy” and similar terms and phrases. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable,
they do involve assumptions, risks and uncertainties, and these expectations may prove to be incorrect. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date of this quarterly report.
 

As used herein, the terms “Cheniere,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries.
 

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of factors, including those discussed under “Risk
Factors” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by these risk factors. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this quarterly report.
 

The following discussion and analysis presents management’s view of our business, financial condition and overall performance and should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes in Item 1. “Consolidated Financial Statements.” This information is intended to provide investors with an
understanding of our past performance, current financial condition and outlook for the future.
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Overview
 

We are engaged primarily in the business of developing and constructing, and then owning and operating, a network of up to three onshore LNG receiving terminals and
related natural gas pipelines. In addition, we are engaged to a limited extent in LNG and natural gas marketing activities, and also to a limited extent in oil and natural gas
exploration and development activities in the Gulf of Mexico.
 
Overview of Significant 2009 Events
 

In the first six months of 2009, we continued to execute our strategy to complete construction of the Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass LNG”) receiving terminal and to
generate steady and reliable revenues under long-term TUAs of Sabine Pass LNG. The major events for the first six months of 2009 include the following:
 
 • the receipt of capacity reservation fee payments from Cheniere Marketing, LLC (“Cheniere Marketing”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheniere, Total Gas &

Power North America, Inc. (formally known as Total LNG USA, Inc.) (“Total”) and Chevron U.S.A., Inc. (“Chevron”);
 
 • the purchase, transportation and successful unloading of an additional LNG commissioning cargo for the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal;
 
 • the receipt of limited partner distributions from Freeport LNG Development, L.P. (“Freeport LNG”);
 
 • the purchase of our first commercial cargo; and
 
 • the reduction of debt by exchanging $120.4 million aggregate principal amount of our 2¼% Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 (“Convertible Senior

Unsecured Notes”) for a combination of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million shares of our common stock, reducing our principal amount due in
2012 to $204.6 million, at June 30, 2009. As a result of the exchange, we recognized a gain of $45.4 million that we have reported as gain on early extinguishment
of debt in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended June 20, 2009.

 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

(in thousands)  
Sabine

Pass LNG, L.P.   

Cheniere
Energy

Partners, L.P.   
Other Cheniere

Energy, Inc.   

Consolidated
Cheniere
Energy,

Inc.  
Cash and cash equivalents  $ —  $ —  $ 88,946  $ 88,946 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents   224,856   34,878   5,265   264,999 

Total  $ 224,856  $ 34,878  $ 94,211  $ 353, 945 
 

As of June 30, 2009, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $89.0 million. In addition, we had restricted cash and cash equivalents of $265.0 million, which were
designated for the following purposes: $128.8 million for Sabine Pass LNG’s working capital; $96.1 million for interest payments related to the Senior Notes described below;
$34.9 million for potential cash distributions by Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”); and, $5.3 million for other restricted purposes.
 

We amended the 2008 Convertible Loans, as described below, which amendment allowed us to transfer $65.2 million from the TUA reserve account early in order to utilize
the funds for commercial opportunities.  As a result of this amendment, we reclassified approximately $65.2 million from restricted cash and cash equivalents to unrestricted cash
and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2009.
 

 As described below in further detail by business segment and for corporate and other activities, we believe that we will have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to operate
our business and pursue our business strategies over the next several years.
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LNG Receiving Terminal Business
 

Cheniere Partners
 

Our ownership interest in the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is held through Cheniere Partners. In 2007, Cheniere Partners completed a public offering of
15,525,000 Cheniere Partners common units. As a result of this public offering, our combined general partner and limited partner ownership interests in Cheniere Partners was
reduced to approximately 90.6%. Cheniere Partners owns a 100% interest in Sabine Pass LNG, which is constructing and operating the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
 

For each calendar year, Cheniere Partners is expected to make annual distributions of $1.70 per unit on all outstanding common units, subordinated units and related
distributions to its general partner. We anticipate receiving $18.5 million per year out of the total $44.9 million of annual common unit distributions. We anticipate receiving
$235.8 million per year from distributions to the subordinated and general partner units, of which we own 100%.
 

Cheniere Partners relies on the receipt of operating revenues from Sabine Pass LNG’s TUAs to fund quarterly cash distributions to us and other unitholders. Sabine Pass
LNG is not permitted under the Sabine Pass Indenture to make cash distributions to Cheniere Partners if it does not satisfy a fixed charge coverage ratio test of 2:1, calculated as
required in the Sabine Pass Indenture as well as other conditions. If the coverage test is not met, we may not receive distributions. The fixed charge coverage ratio test was met for
the periods through June 30, 2009 and distributions in the amount of $149.3 million have been made during the first six months of 2009, from Sabine Pass LNG to Cheniere
Partners. Cheniere Partners utilized the cash received from Sabine Pass LNG to pay expenses and make distributions.  Cheniere Partners has made distributions of $140.3 million
in the aggregate to us and its other unitholders during the first six months of 2009.
 

A distribution reserve account was established from proceeds of Cheniere Partners’ initial public offering to pay distributions to the common unitholders and general partner
to the extent needed for Cheniere Partners to make such distributions with funds other than unrestricted cash through the distributions for the second quarter of 2009, after which
the funds remaining in the account are to be returned to us. Sabine Pass LNG began making distributions from unrestricted cash in February 2009 and Cheniere Partners expects to
continue making its distributions from its unrestricted cash balances rather than from the distribution reserve account.
 

As of July 15, 2009, there was $34.9 million in the distribution reserve account. We expect that, after accounting for interest earned in the account, approximately $35
million of remaining funds will be distributed to us in August 2009 pursuant to the terms of Cheniere Partners’ partnership agreement.
 

We also expect to receive approximately $19 million of annual management and service fees from Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners pursuant to existing agreements.
 

Sabine Pass LNG Receiving Terminal
 

Our estimated aggregate construction, commissioning and operating cost budget through the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal
(with approximately 4.0 Bcf/d of total sendout capacity and five LNG storage tanks with approximately 16.8 Bcf of aggregate storage capacity) is approximately $1,559 million,
excluding financing costs. Of this amount, approximately $1,499 million of construction and commissioning costs had been incurred as of June 30, 2009. Our remaining
construction, commissioning and operating costs are anticipated to be funded from Sabine Pass LNG’s available cash.
 

The entire approximately 4.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity that will be available at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal upon completion of construction has been
fully reserved under three long-term TUAs, under which Sabine Pass LNG’s customers are required to pay fixed monthly fees, whether or not they use the terminal. Because we
achieved commercial operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in September 2008, capacity reservation fee TUA payments will be made by our third-party customers
as follows:
 
 • Total has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and has agreed to make monthly capacity payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating

approximately $125 million per year for 20 years that commenced April 1, 2009. Total, S.A. has guaranteed Total’s obligations under its TUA up to $2.5 billion,
subject to certain exceptions; and

 
 • Chevron has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and has agreed to make monthly capacity payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating

approximately $125 million per year for 20 years that commenced July 1, 2009. Chevron Corporation has guaranteed Chevron’s obligations under its TUA up to
80% of the fees payable by Chevron.
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Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Cheniere Marketing, has reserved the remaining 2.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity, and is entitled to use any capacity not utilized by Total
and Chevron. Cheniere Marketing has agreed to make capacity payments aggregating approximately $250 million per year for the period from January 2009 through at least the
third quarter of 2028. Cheniere has guaranteed Cheniere Marketing’s obligations under its TUA.
 

Under each of these TUAs, Sabine Pass LNG is entitled to retain 2% of the LNG delivered for the customer’s account, which Sabine Pass LNG will use primarily as fuel for
revaporation and self-generated power at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
 

Each of Total and Chevron previously paid us $20.0 million in nonrefundable advance capacity reservation fees, which will be amortized over a 10-year period as a
reduction of each customer’s regasification capacity fees payable under its TUA.
 

Other LNG Receiving Terminals
 

We have a 30% limited partner interest in Freeport LNG. In October 2008, January 2009 and April 2009, Freeport LNG made distributions to us of $4.8 million, $3.9
million and $2.7 million, respectively. We expect to continue to receive distributions from Freeport LNG as they are approved by the board of directors of Freeport LNG’s general
partner.
 

We will contemplate making final investment decisions to complete construction of our Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal project and to commence construction of
our Creole Trail LNG receiving terminal project upon, among other things, entering into acceptable commercial arrangements and entering into acceptable financing arrangements
for the applicable project. We do not expect to spend significant funds on these projects until we have entered into acceptable commercial arrangements and acceptable financing
arrangements.
 
Natural Gas Pipeline Business
 

As of June 30, 2009, Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline, consisting of 94 miles of natural gas pipeline, had been constructed and placed into commercial operations.
Expenditures incurred for the construction of the Creole Trail Pipeline through June 30, 2009 were approximately $554 million, including accrued liabilities. We believe we will
have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to operate Phase 1 of our Creole Trail Pipeline for the next several years.
 

We will contemplate making a final investment decision to construct Phase 2 of the Creole Trail Pipeline, the Corpus Christi Pipeline, the Cheniere Southern Trail Pipeline
and the Burgos Hub Project upon, among other things, receiving all required authorizations to construct and operate the applicable pipeline (and storage facility in the case of
Burgos Hub), to the extent not already obtained, and entering into acceptable commercial arrangements and acceptable financing arrangements for the applicable project. We do
not expect to spend significant funds on these projects until we have entered into acceptable commercial arrangements and acceptable financing arrangements.
 
LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Business
 

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Cheniere Marketing, is developing an LNG and natural gas marketing business. Its principal asset is a TUA at the Sabine Pass LNG
receiving terminal. Our LNG and natural gas marketing business segment is seeking to develop a portfolio of long-term, short-term, and spot LNG purchase agreements.
 

Cheniere Marketing will utilize the funds in the TUA reserve account, distributions from Cheniere Partners and operating cash flows to pay its TUA obligation.  We believe
that we have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to fund our LNG and natural gas marketing business for the next several years.
 
Corporate and Other Activities
 

We are required to maintain corporate general and administrative functions to serve our business activities described above. We believe that we will have sufficient cash and
cash equivalents to fund these functions over the next several years.
 

Although our focus is primarily on the development of LNG-related businesses, we continue to be involved to a limited extent in oil and gas exploration, development and
exploration activities in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico. We do not anticipate significant cash expenditures related to these activities and expect our cash inflows from oil
and natural gas production to decrease as reserves are produced.
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Sources and Uses of Cash
 

The following table (in thousands) and the explanatory paragraphs following the table summarize the sources and uses of our cash and cash equivalents for the six months
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. The table presents capital expenditures on a cash basis; therefore, these amounts differ from the amounts of capital expenditures, including accruals,
that are referred to elsewhere in this document.
 
  Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2009   2008  
     (As adjusted)  
SOURCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       

Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents  $ 149,479  $ 410,470 
Use of restricted treasury securities   —   21,717 
Proceeds from debt   —   95,000 
Other   4,286   241 
Total sources of cash and cash equivalents   153,765   527,428 

         
USES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS         

LNG terminal and pipeline construction-in-process   (81,175)   (440,782)
Debt repurchases   (30,030)   — 
Operating cash flow   (27,643)   (107,162)
Purchase of LNG for commissioning, net of amounts transferred to LNG terminal construction-in- process   (14,184)   (65,416)
Advances under long-term contracts, net of transfers to construction-in-process   —   (5,118)
Debt issuance costs   (33)   (12,503)
Distributions to non-controlling interest holders   (13,196)   (13,196)
Purchase of treasury shares   (80)   (4,406)
Purchases of intangible and fixed assets, net of sales   (140)   (3,542)
Other   (530)   (9,218)
Total uses of cash and cash equivalents   (167,011)   (661,343)

         
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (13,246)   (133,915)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—beginning of period   102,192   296,530 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—end of period  $ 88,946  $ 162,615 
 

Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
 

In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,032.0 million of Senior Secured Notes consisting of $550.0 million of 7¼% Senior
Secured Notes due 2013 (the “2013 Notes”) and $1,482.0 million of 7½% Senior Secured Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes” and collectively with the 2013 Notes, the “Senior
Notes”). Under the indenture governing the Senior Notes, a portion of the proceeds from the Senior Notes is required to be used for scheduled interest payments and to fund the
cost to complete construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. Due to these restrictions imposed by the indenture, the proceeds are not presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and therefore, when proceeds from the Senior Notes are used they are presented as a source of cash and cash equivalents. For the six months ended June 30, 2009, the
$149.5 million use of restricted cash and cash equivalents was the result of obtaining access to use the $65.2 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents in the TUA reserve
account and using restricted cash and cash equivalents to pay for scheduled interest payments and construction activities at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. For the six
months ended June 30, 2008, the $410.5 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents were used primarily to pay for scheduled interest payments and construction activities at the
Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
 

LNG terminal and pipeline construction-in-process
 

Capital expenditures for our LNG receiving terminals and pipeline projects were $81.2 million and $440.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The 81.6% decrease of LNG terminal and pipeline construction-in-process in the six months ended June 30, 2009 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008,
resulted primarily from our completing construction of the initial phase of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, which commenced construction in the first quarter of 2005, and
the Creole Trail Pipeline, which commenced initial construction in the second quarter of 2007.
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Debt repurchases
 

Net cash used in debt repurchase was $30.0 million and zero in the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. During the second quarter of 2009, we reduced
long-term debt by exchanging a combination of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million common shares for $120.4 million aggregate principal amount of our
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
 

Operating cash flow
 

Net cash used in operations was $27.6 million and $107.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Net cash used in operations in the six
months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 related primarily to the continued development of our LNG receiving terminals, natural gas pipelines and LNG and natural gas marketing
business, offset by TUA payments received from Total and Chevron during the six months ended June 30, 2009.
 

Purchase of LNG for commissioning, net of amounts transferred to LNG terminal construction-in- process
 

In the six months ended June 30, 2009, we acquired and successfully unloaded an additional LNG commissioning cargo for the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. As of
June 30, 2008, we acquired LNG commissioning cargoes for the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and successfully unloaded the LNG into the Sabine Pass LNG receiving
terminal.
 

Distributions to non-controlling interest holders
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 we made distributions of $13.2 million to non-controlling interest holders of Cheniere Partners.
 
Debt Agreements
 

The following table (in thousands) and the explanatory paragraphs following the table summarize our various debt agreements as of June 30, 2009.

  
Sabine

Pass LNG, L.P.   
Cheniere Energy

Partners, L.P.   
Other Cheniere

Energy, Inc.   

Consolidated
Cheniere
Energy,

Inc.  
Long-term debt             

Senior Notes  $ 2,215,500  $ —  $ —  $ 2,215,500 
2007 Term Loan   —   —   400,000   400,000 
2008 Convertible Loans   —   —   276,959   276,959 
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes   —   —   204,630   204,630 

Total long-term debt   2,215,500   —   881,589   3,097,089 
                 
Debt discount                 

Senior Notes (1)   (34,819)   —   —   (34,819)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (2)   —   —   (45,950)   (45,950)

Total debt discount   (34,819)   —   (45,950)   (80,769)
                 
Long-term debt, net of discount  $ 2,180,681  $ —  $ 835,639  $ 3,016,320 
 

(1)  In September 2008, Sabine Pass LNG issued an additional $183.5 million, par value, of 2016 Notes.  The net proceeds from the additional issuance of the 2016 Notes
were $145.0 million.  The difference between the par value and the net proceeds is the debt discount, which will be amortized through the maturity of the 2016 Notes.

 
(2)  We adopted FSP APB 14-1, effective as of January 1, 2009, which required us to record a debt discount on our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.  The

unamortized discount will be amortized through the maturity of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
 

Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
 

In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325.0 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes to qualified institutional buyers
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The notes bear interest at a rate of 2¼% per year. Interest on the notes is payable semi-
annually in arrears February 1 and August 1 of each year. The notes are convertible at any time into our common stock under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of
28.2326 per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equal to a conversion price of approximately $35.42 per share. As of June 30, 2009, no holders had elected to convert
their notes. We may redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10
trading days the volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five consecutive trading days. In the event of such
redemption, we will make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury
securities rate plus 50 basis points. The Indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.

 
During the second quarter of 2009, we reduced debt by exchanging $120.4 million aggregate principal amount of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes for a combination

of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million common shares, reducing our principal amount due in 2012 to $204.6 million, at June 30, 2009. As a result of the
exchange, we will recognize a gain of $45.4 million that we have reported as gain on early extinguishment of debt in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2009.
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Sabine Pass LNG Senior Notes
 

Sabine Pass LNG has issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,215.5 million of Senior Notes consisting of $550.0 million of 7¼% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 and
$1,665.5 million of 7½% Senior Secured Notes due 2016. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year. The Senior
Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets. Under the Sabine Pass
Indenture governing the Senior Notes, except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions are satisfied. There must be on
deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the number of elapsed months since the last semi-annual
interest payment. In addition, there must be on deposit in a permanent debt service reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-annual interest payment of $82.4 million.
Distributions are permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding requirements, a fixed charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and other conditions specified in the Sabine Pass
Indenture.
 

2007 Term Loan
 

In May 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement (“2007 Term Loan”). Borrowings
under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9¾% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid principal amount of the 2007 Term Loan outstanding and is
payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on May 31, 2012. The 2007 Term Loan is
secured by a pledge of our 135,383,831 subordinated units in Cheniere Partners and our equity interests in the entities that own our 30% interest in Freeport LNG.
 

2008 Convertible Loans
 

In August 2008, we entered into a credit agreement pursuant to which we obtained $250.0 million in convertible term loans (“2008 Convertible Loans”). The 2008
Convertible Loans will mature in 2018, but the lenders can require prepayment of the loans for thirty days following August 15, 2011, 2013 and 2015, and upon a change of
control. The 2008 Convertible Loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum, except during the occurrence of an event of default during which time the rate of interest will
be 14% per annum. Interest is due semi-annually on the last business day of January and July. At our option, until August 15, 2011, accrued interest may be added to the principal
on each semi-annual interest date. The aggregate amount of all accrued interest to August 15, 2011 will be payable on the maturity date. The 2008 Convertible Loans are secured by
Cheniere’s rights and fees payable under management services agreements with Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners, by Cheniere’s common units in Cheniere Partners, by the
equity and non-real property assets of Cheniere’s pipeline entities, by the equity of various other subsidiaries and certain other assets and subsidiary guarantees. The principal
amount of $250.0 million may be exchanged for newly-created Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock”), with voting rights
limited to the equivalent of 10,125,000 shares of common stock. The exchange ratio is one share of Series B Preferred Stock for each $5,000 of outstanding borrowings, subject to
adjustment. The exchange ratio will be adjusted in the event we make certain distributions of cash, shares or property on our shares of common stock. The aggregate Series B
Preferred Stock is exchangeable into 50 million shares of common stock at a price of $5.00 per share pursuant to a broadly syndicated offering. We are required to file a
registration statement to register the Series B Preferred Stock upon demand by the majority of the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock. Such holders also have the right to
demand registration of the shares of common stock into which the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible. No portion of any accrued interest is eligible for conversion into Series B
Preferred Stock. We placed $135.0 million of the borrowings under the 2008 Convertible Loans into a TUA reserve account to pay the reservation fee and operating fee as defined
under Cheniere Marketing’s TUA. We utilized $95.0 million of the borrowings under the 2008 Convertible Loans to repay a bridge loan. The remaining borrowings were utilized
to pay for interest on the bridge loan, to pay expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the 2008 Convertible Loans and consideration of other strategic alternatives, and
to fund working capital and general corporate needs of Cheniere and its subsidiaries.
 

As long as the 2008 are exchangeable for shares of Series B Preferred Stock or shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the holders of a majority of the 2008
Convertible Loans and Series B Preferred Stock, acting together, shall have the right to nominate two individuals to the Company’s Board of Directors, and together with Board of
Directors, a third nominee, who shall be an independent director.  In addition, one of the lenders is Scorpion Capital Partners LP (“Scorpion”), an affiliate of one of the Company’s
directors.  As of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we have presented $277.0 million and $261.4 million, respectively, as Long-term Debt—Related Party on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Issuances of Common Stock
 

During the first six months of 2009, no shares of our common stock were issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options. We issued 314,000 shares of non-vested restricted
stock to new and existing employees during the first six months of 2009.  We issued 4.0 million shares of our common stock as part of the consideration used to repurchase a
portion of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
 

During the first six months of 2008, a total of 45,000 shares of our common stock were issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options, resulting in net cash proceeds of
$0.2 million. In addition, in January 2008, 480,000 shares of our common stock were issued to our employees in the form of non-vested restricted stock awards, and 537,000
shares of vested common stock were issued to our executive officers related to our performance in 2007. During the first six months of 2008, we issued an additional 21,000 shares
of non-vested restricted stock to new and existing employees.
 
Results of Operations
 
Three Months Ended June 30, 2009 vs. Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 (As adjusted)
 

Overall Operations
 

Our consolidated net loss was $13.1 million ($0.25 net loss per common share—basic and diluted) in the three months ended June 30, 2009, a 91.0% decrease over our
$136.5 million ($2.90 net loss per common share—basic and diluted) in the three months ended June 30, 2008 consolidated net loss. The decrease in net loss was primarily due to
an increase in LNG terminal revenue related to the start of our TUA fee from Total, the gain associated with the repurchase of a portion of our Convertible Senior Unsecured
Notes at a discount, the absence of restructuring charges and a decrease of general and administrative expenses (“G&A”); partially offset by increases in interest expense and
depreciation expense.  As a result of our repurchase of a portion of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes at a discount, we recognized a one-time $45.4 million gain on early
extinguishment of debt in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to zero gain in the three months ended June 30, 2008.  Not including the impact of this gain on early
extinguishment of debt in the three months ended June 30, 2009, our net loss would have been $58.5 million, or $1.13 net loss per common share—basic and diluted.
 

Revenues
 

Revenues increased $37.0 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008. The increase in revenues was primarily
caused by the commencement of Total’s TUA payments effective April 1, 2009. Total has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity at our Sabine Pass LNG
receiving terminal for 20 years paying approximately $125 million per year.  Revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2009, did not include payments under Chevron’s TUA,
which commenced effective July 1, 2009.
 

LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense
 

LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense increased $8.8 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008.
This increase in operating expense is a result of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal’s initial 2.6 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and 10.2 Bcf/d of storage capacity achieving
commercial operability in the third quarter of 2008.
 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization Expense
 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased $9.5 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008. This
increase resulted from our having begun depreciating the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal’s initial 2.6 Bcf/d of regassification capacity and 10.1 Bcf of storage capacity in the
third quarter of 2008 when it was ready for use and placed in service, and our having begun depreciating the Creole Trail Pipeline during the second quarter of 2008 when it was
ready for use and placed in service.
 

Restructuring Charges
 

Restructuring charges decreased $78.6 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008. During the three months ended
June 30, 2008, we recognized $78.6 million in restructuring charges as a result of our 2008 cost savings program in connection with the downsizing of our natural gas marketing
business activities, wrapping up of significant construction activities for both Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and Creole Trail Pipeline and seeking alternative arrangements
for our time charter interest in two LNG vessels.  In the three months ended June 20, 2009 we did not record any restructuring charges and do not expect to record any material
amounts in the future as it relates to the 2008 cost savings program mentioned.
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General and Administrative Expenses
 

G&A expenses decreased $3.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008. This decrease in G&A expense
primarily resulted from a reduction in a tax accrual and a reduction in salaries and benefits incurred in 2009 associated with our 2008 cost savings program and the allocation of
salaries and benefits to operating costs as a result of the achievement of commercial operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in September 2008. Included in G&A
expenses in the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were non-cash compensation of $5.0 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Excluding the impact of non-cash
compensation, G&A for the three months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 would have been $10.4 million and $16.6 million, respectively.
 

Interest Expense, net
 

Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, increased $36.3 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008. The
increase in interest expense was caused by additional debt issuances during the third quarter of 2008, and a decrease in capitalized interest as a result of placing in service the initial
phase of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and Creole Trail Pipeline in the third quarter of 2008 and second quarter of 2008, respectively.
 

Derivative Gain (Loss)
 

Derivative gain (loss) in the three months ended June 30, 2009 was a gain of $0.8 million compared to a loss of $11.5 million in the three months ended June 30, 2008. The
change in derivative gain (loss) is a function of natural gas commodity prices and the resultant general decrease in natural gas prices for the comparative periods that increase the
value of our natural gas derivative instruments that we use to hedge exposure to decreasing natural gas prices.
 

Interest Income
 

Interest income decreased $4.4 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2008, due to lower average invested cash
balances resulting from the use of cash to pay construction costs and interest payments and lower interest rates.
 
Six Months Ended June 30, 2009 vs. Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 (As adjusted)
 

Overall Operations
 

Our consolidated net loss was $95.8 million ($1.91 net loss per common share—basic and diluted) in the six months ended June 30, 2009, a 49.9% decrease over our $191.2
million ($4.06 net loss per common share—basic and diluted) in the six months ended June 30, 2008 consolidated net loss. The decrease in net loss was primarily due to an
increase in LNG terminal revenue related to the start of our TUA fee from Total, the gain associated with the repurchase of a portion of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes at
a discount, the absence of restructuring charges and a decrease of G&A; partially offset by increases in interest expense and depreciation expense.  As a result of our repurchase of
a portion of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes at a discount, we recognized a one-time $45.4 million gain on early extinguishment of debt in the six months ended June 30,
2009 compared to zero gain in the six months ended June 30, 2008.  Not including the impact of this gain on early extinguishment of debt in the six months ended June 30, 2009,
our net loss would have been $141.2 million, or $2.81 net loss per common share—basic and diluted.
 

Revenues
 

Revenues increased $36.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008. The increase in revenues was primarily caused
by the commencement of Total’s TUA payments effective April 1, 2009. Total has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity at our Sabine Pass LNG receiving
terminal for 20 years paying approximately $125 million per year.  Revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2009, did not include payments under Chevron’s TUA, which
commenced effective July 1, 2009.
 

LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense
 

LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense increased $17.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008.
This increase in operating expense is a result of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal’s initial 2.6 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and 10.2 Bcf/d of storage capacity achieving
commercial operability in the third quarter of 2008, and Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline achieving commercial operability in the second quarter of 2008.
 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization Expense
 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased $19.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008. This
increase resulted from our having begun depreciating the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal’s initial 2.6 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and 10.1 Bcf of storage capacity in the
third quarter of 2008 when it was ready for use and placed in service, and our having begun depreciating the Creole Trail Pipeline during the second quarter of 2008 when it was
ready for use and placed in service.
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Restructuring Charges
 

Restructuring charges decreased $78.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008. During the six months ended June
30, 2008, we recognized $78.6 million in restructuring charges as a result of our 2008 cost savings program in connection with the downsizing of our natural gas marketing
business activities, wrapping up of significant construction activities for both Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and Creole Trail Pipeline and seeking alternative arrangements
for our time charter interest in two LNG vessels.  In the six months ended June 20, 2009, we did not record any restructuring charges and do not expect to record any material
amounts in the future as it relates to the 2008 cost savings program mentioned.
 

General and Administrative Expenses
 

G&A expenses decreased $16.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008. This decrease in G&A expense primarily
resulted from a reduction in a tax accrual and a reduction in salaries and benefits incurred in 2009 associated with our 2008 cost savings program and the allocation of salaries and
benefits to operating costs as a result of the achievement of commercial operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in September 2008. Included in G&A expenses in
the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were non-cash compensation of $9.2 million and $14.0 million, respectively. Excluding the impact of non-cash compensation, G&A
for the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 would have been $23.9 million and $36.0 million, respectively.
 

Interest Expense, net
 

Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, increased $65.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008. The increase
in interest expense was caused by additional debt issuances during the third quarter of 2008, and a decrease in capitalized interest as a result of placing in service the initial phase of
the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and Creole Trail Pipeline in the third quarter of 2008 and second quarter of 2008, respectively. In addition, the increase in interest expense
was a result of additional debt issuances during the third quarter of 2008.
 

Derivative Gain (Loss)
 

Derivative gain (loss) in the six months ended June 30, 2009 was a gain of $3.3 million compared to a loss of $12.4 million in the six months ended June 30, 2008. The
change in derivative gain (loss) is a function of natural gas commodity prices and the resultant general decrease in natural gas prices for the comparative periods that increase the
value of our natural gas derivative instruments that we use to hedge exposure to decreasing natural gas prices.
 

Interest Income
 

Interest income decreased $13.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2008, due to lower average invested cash
balances resulting from the use of cash to pay construction costs and interest payments and lower interest rates.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 

As of June 30, 2009, we had no “off-balance sheet arrangements” that may have a current or future material affect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.
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Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 

The selection and application of accounting policies is an important process that has developed as our business activities have evolved and as the accounting rules have
developed. Accounting rules generally do not involve a selection among alternatives but involve an implementation and interpretation of existing rules, and the use of judgment,
to apply the accounting rules to the specific set of circumstances existing in our business. In preparing our financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”), we endeavor to comply properly with all applicable rules on or before their adoption, and we believe that the proper implementation and
consistent application of the accounting rules are critical. However, not all situations are specifically addressed in the accounting literature. In these cases, we must use our best
judgment to adopt a policy for accounting for these situations. We accomplish this by analogizing to similar situations and the accounting guidance governing them.
 
Accounting for LNG Activities
 

Generally, we begin capitalizing the costs of our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines once the individual project meets the following criteria: (i) regulatory
approval has been received, (ii) financing for the project is available and (iii) management has committed to commence construction. Prior to meeting these criteria, most of the
costs associated with a project are expensed as incurred. These costs primarily include professional fees associated with front-end engineering and design work, costs of securing
necessary regulatory approvals, and other preliminary investigation and development activities related to our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines. 

 
Generally, costs that are capitalized prior to a project meeting the criteria otherwise necessary for capitalization include: land costs, costs of lease options and the costs of

certain permits, which are capitalized as intangible LNG assets. The costs of lease options are amortized over the life of the lease once obtained. If no lease is obtained, the costs
are expensed. Site rental costs and related amortization of capitalized options were capitalized during the construction period through the end of 2005. Beginning in 2006, such
costs have been expensed as required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Staff Position (“FSP”) 13-1, Accounting for Rental Cost Incurred During a
Construction Period.
 

During the construction periods of our LNG receiving terminals, we capitalize interest and other related debt costs in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 34, Capitalization of Interest Cost, as amended by SFAS No. 58, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Financial Statements That Include Investments
Accounted for by the Equity Method—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 34. Upon commencement of operations, capitalized interest, as a component of the total cost, will be
amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset.
 
Revenue Recognition
 

LNG regasification capacity fees are recognized as revenue over the term of the respective TUAs. Advance capacity reservation fees are initially deferred.
 
Regulated Natural Gas Pipelines
 

Our developing natural gas pipeline business is subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Act of
1978, and we have determined that certain of our pipeline systems to be constructed have met the criteria set forth in SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulations. Accordingly, we have applied the provisions of SFAS No. 71 to the affected pipeline subsidiaries beginning in the second quarter of 2006.
 

Our application of SFAS No. 71 is based on the current regulatory environment, our current projected tariff rates, and our ability to collect those rates. Future regulatory
developments and rate cases could impact this accounting. Although discounting of our maximum tariff rates may occur, we believe that the standards required by SFAS No. 71
for its application are met and the use of regulatory accounting under SFAS No. 71 best reflects the results of future operations in the economic environment in which we will
operate. Regulatory accounting requires us to record assets and liabilities that result from the rate-making process that would not be recorded under generally accepted accounting
principles for non-regulated entities. We will continue to evaluate the application of regulatory accounting principles based on on-going changes in the regulatory and economic
environment. Items that may influence our assessment are:
 
 • inability to recover cost increases due to rate caps and rate case moratoriums;
 
 • inability to recover capitalized costs, including an adequate return on those costs through the rate-making process and the FERC proceedings;
 
 • excess capacity;
 
 • increased competition and discounting in the markets we serve; and
 
 • impacts of ongoing regulatory initiatives in the natural gas industry.
 

Natural gas pipeline costs include amounts capitalized as an Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”). The rates used in the calculation of AFUDC are
determined in accordance with guidelines established by the FERC. AFUDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance our natural gas pipeline additions during
construction. AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of our natural gas pipelines. Under regulatory rate practices, we generally are permitted to recover AFUDC, and a fair
return thereon, through our rate base after our natural gas pipelines are placed in service.
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Cash Flow Hedges
 

We have used, and may in the future use, derivative instruments to limit our exposure to variability in expected future cash flows. As defined in SFAS No. 133, Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, cash flow hedge transactions hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows. In the case of cash flow hedges,
the hedged item (the underlying risk) is generally unrecognized (i.e., not recorded on the balance sheet prior to settlement), and any changes in the fair value, therefore, will not
be recorded within earnings. Conceptually, if a cash flow hedge is effective, this means that a variable, such as a movement in interest rates, has been effectively fixed so that any
fluctuations will have no net result on either cash flows or earnings. Therefore, if the changes in fair value of the hedged item are not recorded in earnings, then the changes in fair
value of the hedging instrument (the derivative) must also be excluded from the income statement or else a one-sided net impact on earnings will be reported, despite the fact that
the establishment of the effective hedge results in no net economic impact. To prevent such a scenario from occurring, SFAS No. 133 requires that the fair value of a derivative
instrument designated as a cash flow hedge to be recorded as an asset or liability on the balance sheet, but with the offset reported as part of other comprehensive income, to the
extent that the hedge is effective. We assess both at the inception of each hedge and on an on-going basis, whether the derivatives that are used in our hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items. On an on-going basis, we monitor the actual dollar offset of the hedges’ market values compared to
hypothetical cash flow hedges. Any ineffective portion of the cash flow hedges will be reflected in earnings. Ineffectiveness is the amount of gains or losses from derivative
instruments that are not offset by corresponding and opposite gains or losses on the expected future transaction.
 
Goodwill
 

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We perform an annual goodwill impairment review in the fourth
quarter of each year; although we may perform a goodwill impairment review more frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.
 
Share-Based Compensation Expense
 

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payments, using the modified prospective transition method,
and therefore have not restated the results of prior periods. Under this method, we recognize compensation expense for all share-based payments granted after January 1, 2006 and
prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, in accordance with SFAS No. 123R using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model. Under the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123R, we recognize share-based compensation net of an estimated forfeiture rate and only recognize compensation cost for those shares expected to vest
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we accounted for share-based payments under Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and accordingly, did not recognize compensation expense for options granted that had an exercise price
greater than or equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
 

Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards requires the use of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected life of the share-based payment awards and stock price volatility. We believe that implied volatility, calculated based on traded options of our common stock, combined
with historical volatility is an appropriate indicator of expected volatility and future stock price trends. Therefore, the expected volatility for the year ended December 31, 2008
used in our fair value model was based on a combination of implied and historical volatilities. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards
represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change and we use different
assumptions, our share-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only
recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, future share-based compensation expense could be
significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period (See Note 16—“Share-Based Compensation” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
 
New Accounting Standards and Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted
 

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased
and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly, which provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 157 when the volume and level of
activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. This FSP re-emphasizes that regardless of market conditions the fair value measurement is an exit price concept as
defined in SFAS No. 157. This FSP clarifies and includes additional factors to consider in determining whether there has been a significant decrease in market activity for an asset
or liability and provides additional clarification on estimating fair value when the market activity for an asset or liability has declined significantly. The scope of this FSP does not
include assets and liabilities measured under level 1 inputs. We adopted FSP SFAS 157-4 on June 30, 2009 and will apply it prospectively to all fair value measurements where
appropriate. The adoption of FSP SFAS 157-4 did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
 

On June 30, 2009, we adopted FSP SFAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board (APB) 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments. This FSP,
which amends SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires publicly-traded companies, as defined in APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial
Reporting, to provide disclosures on the fair value of financial instruments in interim financial statements. The adoption of FSP SFAS 107-1 did not have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
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In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events.  SFAS No. 165 establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after
the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued.  Although there is new terminology, the standard is based on the same principles as
those that currently exist.  This statement, which includes a new required disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events, is effective for interim or
annual periods ending after June 15, 2009.  We adopted the statement for the period ending June 30, 2009.  The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
 

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. This statement clarifies the
characteristics that identify a variable interest entity (VIE) and changes how a reporting entity identifies a primary beneficiary that would consolidate the VIE from a quantitative
risk and rewards calculation to a qualitative approach based on which variable interest holder has a controlling financial interest and the ability to direct the most significant
activities that impact the VIE’s economic performance.  This statement requires the primary beneficiary assessment to be performed on a continuous basis.  It also requires
additional disclosures about an entity’s involvement with VIE, restrictions on the VIE’s assets and liabilities that are included in the reporting entity’s consolidated balance sheet,
significant risk exposures due to the entity’s involvement with the VIE, and how its involvement with a VIE impacts the reporting entity’s consolidated financial statements. SFAS
No.167 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009.  We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 167, effective as of January 1, 2010, to have a material
impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
 

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. SFAS No. 168
establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the “Codification”) as the single source of authoritative GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. SFAS
No. 168 and the Codification are effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. When effective, the Codification will
supersede all existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. We adopted SFAS No. 168 on July 1, 2009, and we do not anticipate this adoption to have an impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
 
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
 
Cash Investments
 

We have cash investments that we manage based on internal investment guidelines that emphasize liquidity and preservation of capital. Such cash investments are stated at
historical cost, which approximates fair market value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
Marketing and Trading Commodity Price Risk
 

Through Cheniere Marketing, we from time to time will enter into natural gas derivatives to hedge the exposure of future cash flows associated with the LNG that we hold.
We use value at risk (“VaR”) and other methodologies for market risk measurement and control purposes. At June 30, 2009, the one-day VaR with a 95% confidence interval of
our derivative positions was less than $0.1 million. At December 31, 2008, the one-day VaR with a 95% confidence interval of our derivative positions was less than $0.1 million.
 

Our derivative positions as of June 30, 2009 primarily consisted of exchange cleared NYMEX natural gas swaps entered into to hedge the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows related to the sale of commercial LNG and of excess LNG purchased for commissioning the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. As of June 30, 2009, we had
entered into a total of 5,150,000 MMBtu of NYMEX natural gas swaps through January 31, 2010 for which we will receive fixed prices of $3.844 to $6.101 per MMBtu. At June
30, 2009, the value of the derivatives was an asset of $1.0 million.
 
Item 4. Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the quarter ended June 30, 2009, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we
file or submit under the Exchange Act are (i) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (ii) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms.

 
During the most recent fiscal quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to

materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
 

We may in the future be involved as a party to various legal proceedings, which are incidental to the ordinary course of business. We regularly analyze current information
and, as necessary, provide accruals for probable liabilities on the eventual disposition of these matters. In the opinion of management, as of June 30, 2009, there were no threatened
or pending legal matters that would have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
 

We held an annual meeting of our stockholders on June 12, 2009. The following individuals were elected to serve as Class II directors on the Board of Directors and each
such individual will hold office until our 2012 annual meeting or until his successor is duly elected and qualified: Nuno Brandolini, John M. Deutch and Paul J. Hoenmans. In
addition to the election of directors, the following matters were submitted to a vote and approved by our stockholders: approval of an amendment to our Restated Certification of
Incorporation, approval of Amendment No. 4 to our Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan and the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
independent accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009 by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.  We sought approval of an amendment to our Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in order to increase the number of shares of authorized common stock from 120,000,000 to 240,000,000.  We sought approval of
Amendment No. 4 to our Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan to provide as follows:
 
 • to increase the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the plan from 11,000,000 to 21,000,000;  
 
 • to increase the maximum number of shares that can be granted to any one individual during a calendar year from 1,000,000 to 3,000,000;  
 
 • to increase the aggregate cash awards that may be payable to an individual during any calendar year from $10 million to $25 million ; and  
 
 • to add an additional permissible business criterion pursuant to which performance awards may be granted under the plan.
 

There were 52,225,573 shares of common stock outstanding and eligible to vote as of the record date of April 13, 2009.  Approximately 85% of the outstanding voting
shares, or 44,904,531 shares of common stock, were present, either in person or by proxy, and were voted at the 2009 annual meeting.  The following table summarizes the results
of the voting:

 ITEM 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
 

Director  

Number of
Votes
For   

Number of
Votes

Withheld  
Nuno Brandolini   43,650,566   1,253,965 
John M. Deutch   42,716,196   2,188,335 
Paul J. Hoenmans   43,997,924   906,607 

 ITEM 2: APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE COMPANY’S RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

Number of
Votes For  

Percent of
Outstanding

Shares   

Number of
Votes

Against   

Percent of
Outstanding

Shares   

Number of
Votes

Abstained   

Percent of
Outstanding

Shares   
Non-
Votes   

Percent of
Outstanding

Shares  
                      

29,730,584   56.93%   3,663,165   7.01%   92,757   0.18%   11,418,025   21.86%
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 ITEM 3: APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE CHENIERE ENERGY, INC AMENDED AND RETATED 2003 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Number of
Votes For  

Percent of
Votes Cast   

Number of
Votes

Against   
Percent of
Votes Cast   

Number of
Votes

Abstained   
Percent of
Votes Cast   

Non-
Votes   

Percent of
Votes Cast  

26,555,163   59.14%   6,790,806   15.12%   140,537   0.31%   11,418,025   25.43%

 ITEM 4: RATIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Number of
Votes For  

Percent of
Votes Cast   

Number of
Votes

Against   
Percent of
Votes Cast   

Number of
Votes

Abstained   
Percent of
VotesCast   

Non-
Votes   

Percent of
Votes Cast  

44,315,525   98.69%   400,106   0.89%   188,900   0.42%   0   0.0%
 
Item 6. Exhibits
 
 (a) Each of the following exhibits is filed herewith:
 
  

10.1 Change Order 11 to Agreement for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Management of Construction Services for the Sabine Pass 2 Receiving, Storage and
Regasification Terminal expansion, dated July 21, 2006, between Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Bechtel Corporation

  
10.2 Change Orders 9, 10, 11 and 12 to Engineer, Procure and Construct (EPC) LNG Unit Rate Soil Contract, dated July 21, 2006, between Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and

Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
  

10.3 Amendment No. Four-C to Credit Agreement, dated June 23, 2009, among Cheniere Common Units Holdings, LLC, the other Loan Parties (as defined therein), the
Lenders (as defined therein) and The Bank of New York Mellon, as administrative agent and collateral agent

  
10.4 Amendment No. Four-D to Credit Agreement, dated June 29, 2009, among Cheniere Common Units Holdings, LLC, the other Loan Parties (as defined therein), the

Lenders (as defined therein) and The Bank of New York Mellon, as administrative agent and collateral agent
  

10.5 First Amendment to Security Deposit Agreement, dated June 19, 2009, by and between Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon as collateral
agent and depositary agent

  
31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

  
31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

  
32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.
 
 CHENIERE ENERGY, INC.
  
 /s/    JERRY D. SMITH        
 Jerry D. Smith

Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer

(on behalf of the registrant and
as principal accounting officer)

  
 Date: August 6, 2009
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Exhibit 10.1
 
SABINE PASS LNG, L.P.
 
 
 May 27, 2009
 Response Required:  No  x  
 
 
Bechtel Corporation
3000 Post Oak Boulevard
Houston, Texas 77056
Attention:  Mr. Mitchell Clayman
 
 
Correspondence   No.     SP2-BE-C-045
 
Subject:  Change Order SP2/BE-011 – Adjustment to Contractor’s Fixed Fee
 
 
Enclosed you will find the signed original for Change Order SP2/BE-011 regarding the Adjustment to Contractor’s Fixed Fee.
 
Should you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact us.
 
 Regards,
  
  
 /s/ Carlos Macias  
 Carlos Macias
 Director, Project Management
 
 
cc: Ed Lehotsky
 David Mitchell
 Graham McArthur
 File
 
 

 



 
 
 CHANGE ORDER FORM  
 
PROJECT NAME:  Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification
Terminal Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)

 CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP2BE-011
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 5, 2009

   
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE NO#011
   
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation   
   
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006   
   
 
 
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:
 
I. Increase in the Fixed Fee associated with the implementation of the following agreed Scope Changes:
 

 

1.

 

Misc Client Work Orders (Trend F-2010)
Work Order Request WR-00011 through WR-00024 from January 2008 through June 2008 covering various requests including
Cheniere's Sign & Billboard, the Noble Road Repairs and the Water Supply to the Hydrant Pond.

 $ 71,828 

        
 2.  Firewater Monitor Modifications (Trend F-2025)

Modify firewater design to isolate firewater spray zone actuators to 18 existing valves for both Phase 1 &2. Also valves,
including field service to install 6 pneumatic hand actuation of the firewater system for both phases. for each tank by adding add
6" firewater butterfly switches to allow manual

 $ 696,505 

        
 3.  FERC Requested LNG Spill Containment (Trend F-2061)

FERC required LNG spill containment including concrete curbing and earthen dikes around the AAV and SCV areas.
 $ 62,534 

        
 4.  Bypass for Cool Down of Tanks S-104 and S105 (Trend F-2076)

Bypasses added to the stop valves to allow a controlled initial cool down to the downstream lines for tanks S-104 and S-105.
 $ 30,961 

        
 5.  Additional Alarms to the UPS from the Metering Station (Trend F-3003)

Alarms from the metering station routed to the UPS system to allow automatic acknowledgement and mitigation.
 $ 28,340 

        
 6.  Additional Earthen Ramns at Tanks S-104 and S-105 (Trend F-3011)

New earthen ramps for Perlite truck access to the LNG tanks spill protection area.
 $ 25,928 

        
 7.  2"d N2 Skid Piling and Foundation (Trend F-3021)

Drive piles and pour the foundation for a 2nd N2 Skid. 1
 $ 38, 980 

        
 8.  Ike Recovery Assistance to SPLNG in the Phase I Area (Trend F-3018)

Post Hurricane Ike work in the Phase I area to assist SPLNG with their recovery effort. This work scope is in addition to the
contractual scope of Phase II.

 $ 121,272 

        
 9.  Use of Rigid Conduit for all Light Stations (Trend F-3019)

Replace existing %2" aluminum conduit with 3/8" rigid conduit for all light stations per the client's request.
 $ 662,542 

        
 10.  Stage 2A Additional AAVs Engineering (Trend F-3014)

FEED design of: 4 additional trains of 18 AAVs; a 12" recondenser line from the Phase 1 recondenser to the 22R piperack; and
sitework engineering for 7 additional AAV trains.

 $ 1,999,000 
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PROJECT NAME:  Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification
Terminal Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)

 CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: MBE-011
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 5, 2009

   
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE NO#011
   
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation   
   
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006   
 

 
11.

 
AAV Train S Crossover Line (Trend F-3034)

Procure materials and construct a crossover line between the SCVs and AAV Train S.
 $ 591,330 

        

 
12.

 
Vendor Packaged Systems Test & Documentation (Trend F-3036)

Provide function loop tests for vendor packaged systems and prepare loop documentation packages & signoffs.
 $ 80,000 

        
   Total Amount of agreed Scope Changes:  $ 4,409,220 
   (Items 1-12 above)     
        

 
13.

 
Change Order SP2BE-010 Carry-Over

This line item represents the remainder difference of $740,047 not previously included in the Fixed Fee adjustment calculation.
 $ 740,047 

        
   Amount Eligible for Fixed Fee Calculation:  $ 5,149,267 
   (Items 1-13 above)     
        

 

14.

 

Change Order SP2BE-011 Fixed Fee
Fixed Fee increases are based on increments of $5,000,000. Consequently, the Fixed Fee increase associated with this Change
Order is calculated based on $5,000,000 (4% x $5,000,000) for a total Fixed Fee Adjustment of $200,000. The remaining
balance of $149,267 will be added to a future Change Order when the next US$5,000,000 threshold is achieved.     

        
   Total Fixed Fee Adjustment Amount:  $ 200,000 
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PROJECT NAME:  Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification
Terminal Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)

 CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP2BE-011
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 5, 2009

   
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE NO#011
   
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation   
   
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006   
   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

Attachment A -  Trend Estimate (F-2010)
Attachment B -  Trend Estimate (F-2025)
Attachment C -  Trend Estimate (F-2061)
Attachment D -  Trend Estimate (F-2076)
Attachment E -  Trend Estimate (F-3003)
Attachment F -  Trend Estimate (F-3011)
Attachment G -  Trend Estimate (F-3019)
Attachment H -  Trend Estimate (F-3021)
Attachment I -  Trend Estimate (F-3018)
Attachment J -  Trend Estimate (F-3014)
Attachment K -  Trend Estimate (F-3034)
Attachment K -  Trend Estimate (F-3036)
Attachment L -  Adjusted Fixed Fee Table

   
REFERENCES:   

Project Instruction Form SP2-023
Project Instruction Form SP2-027
SPLNG Correspondence SP-BE-C-269 dated June 19, 2007

 
 
 
 
 
Adjustment to Contractor's Fixed Fee    
    
The original Fixed Fee was  $ 18,500,000 
     
Change in Fixed Fee by previously authorized Change Orders  $ 2,200,000 
     
The Fixed Fee prior to this Change Order was  $ 20,700,000 
     
The Fixed Fee will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of  $ 200,000 
     
The new Fixed Fee including this Change Order will be  $ 20,900,000 
 
This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order #011 upon the Fixed Fee
and shall be deemed to compensate Bechtel fully for such change.
 
Upon execution of this Change Order by Company and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
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PROJECT NAME:  Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification
Terminal Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)

 CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP2BE-011
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 5, 2009

   
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE NO#011
   
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation   
   
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006   
   
 
/s/ Charif Souki  /s/ Patrick J. McCormack
*Charif Souki  Contractor
Chairman  Patrick J. McCormack
  Name
May / 20 / 2009  Project Director
Date of Signing  Title
  5/14/09
  Date of Signing
   
/s/ Ed Lehotsky   
*Ed Lehotsky   
Owner Representative   
 
 
May 20, 2009   
Date of Signing     
   
   
* Required Owner signature   
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Exhibit 10.2
 

CHANGE ORDER FORM
(for use when the Parties execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 32 of the General Conditions)

PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Project (Phase 2)
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 009
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: March 26,2009
PURCHASER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
SOIL CONTRACTOR: Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
CONTRACT NO. 25279-004-OC2-C000-00001
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is charged as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)

Description of Change: This CO No. 009 is issued to incorporate into the Soil Improvement Contract the following:

Add Pay item 3.30 for closing the Tank 104 and 105 Dike openings (Reference Contract Notification No. 024) and Pay Item 3.40 for constructing a temporary truck ramp at the
northeast corner of Tank 104 Dike (Reference Contract Notification No. 025) as described in the revised Exhibit “C” Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 26, 2009.

Attachments:

 1) Contract Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 26, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated November 26,
2007 in its entirety.

 2) Contract Exhibit “D”, Scope of Work, Revision 2, dated March 26, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “D”, Scope of Work, dated September 11, 2007 in its
entirety.

 3) Contract Exhibit “E-3” Drawings, dated March 26, 2009 which incorporates drawing 25279-001-CS-000-00009 Revision 3 titled Civil Site Development Finished Grade
Plan.

 

The original contract price was  $  28,526,962.28 
      
Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders  $  -1,744,631.63 
      
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order  $  26,782,330.65 
      
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order amount of  $  181,100.00 
      
The New Contract Price including this Change Order will be  $  26,963,430.65 

Upon execution of this Change Order by Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial Construction Services, L.P. the above referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of
the original agreement without exception or qualification unless noted in this Change Order.  Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms
and Condition of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.

Purchaser:  Soil Contractor:
Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
By: Sabine Pass LNG-GP, Inc.,
 Its general partner
 
Authorized Signature:  /s/ Ed Lehotsky   Authorized Signature:  /s/ Steven R. Birdwell 
       
Name:  Ed Lehotsky  Name:  Steven R. Birdwell
       
Title:  VP LNG Proj Mgt  Title:  President
       
Date of Signing:  April 3, 2009  Date of Signing:  4-7-2009
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CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 32 of the General Conditions)

PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Project (Phase 2)
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 010
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: March 27, 2009
PURCHASER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
SOIL CONTRACTOR: Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
CONTRACT NO. 25279-004-OC2-C000-00001
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is charged as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)

Description of Change: This CO No. 010 is issued to incorporate into the Soil Improvement Contract all work necessary to complete the slope protection and finished grade for
LNG Tanks S-104 and S-105 containment dikes and impoundment areas.

Attachments:

 1) Contract Exhibit “B”, Special Conditions, dated March 27, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “B”, Special Conditions, dated January 3, 2007 in its entirety.

 2) Contract Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 27, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 26, 2009 in
its entirety.

 3) Contract Exhibit “D-2”, Scope of Work, dated January 14, 2009 which incorporates the scope of work for the LNG Tanks Area Slope Protection and Finished Grade.

 4) Contract Exhibit “E-4” Drawings, dated January 14, 2009 which incorporates drawings for the LNG Tanks Area Slope Protection and Finished Grade.
 
 
The original contract price was  $  28,526,962.28 
      
Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders  $  -1,563,531.63 
      
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order  $  26,963,430.65 
      
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order amount of  $  605,156.85 
      
The New Contract Price including this Change Order will be  $  27,568,587.50 

Upon execution of this Change Order by Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial Construction Services, L.P. the above referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of
the original agreement without exception or qualification unless noted in this Change Order.  Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms
and Condition of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 
Purchaser: Soil Contractor:
Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
By: Sabine Pass LNG-GP, Inc.,
 Its general partner
 
Authorized Signature:  /s/ Ed Lehotsky  Authorized Signature:  /s/ Steven R. Birdwell 
       
Name:  Ed Lehotsky  Name:  Steven R. Birdwell
       
Title:  VP LNG Proj Mgt  Title:  President
       
Date of Signing:  April 3, 2009  Date of Signing:  4-7-2009
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CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 32 of the General Conditions)

PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Project (Phase 2)
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 011
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: March 28, 2009
PURCHASER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
SOIL CONTRACTOR: Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
CONTRACT NO. 25279-004-OC2-C000-00001
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006
 
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is charged as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)

Description of Change: This CO No. 011 is issued to incorporate into the Soil Improvement Contract the Asphalt Paving and Asphalt Sealer work.
 

Attachments:

 1) Contract Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 28, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 27, 2009 in
its entirety.

 2) Contract Exhibit “D-3”, Scope of Work, dated December 9, 2008 that incorporates the scope of work for the Asphalt Paving and Asphalt Sealer work.

 3) Contract Exhibit “E-5”, Drawings, dated November 8, 2008 that incorporates drawings for the Asphalt Paving and Asphalt Sealer work.

 
 
The original contract price was  $  28,526,962.28 
      
Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders  $  -958,374.78 
      
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order  $  27,568,587.50 
      
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order amount of  $  590,834.04 
      
The New Contract Price including this Change Order will be  $  28,159,421.54 

Upon execution of this Change Order by Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial Construction Services, L.P. the above referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of
the original agreement without exception or qualification unless noted in this Change Order.  Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms
and Condition of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.

Purchaser:  Soil Contractor:
Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
By: Sabine Pass LNG-GP, Inc.,
 Its general partner

Authorized Signature:  /s/ Ed Lehotsky  Authorized Signature:  /s/ Steven R. Birdwell 
       
Name:  Ed Lehotsky  Name:  Steven R. Birdwell
       
Title:  VP LNG Proj Mgt  Title:  President
       
Date of Signing:  April 3, 2009  Date of Signing:  4/7/2009
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CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 32 of the General Conditions)

PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Project (Phase 2)
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 012
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 18, 2009
PURCHASER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
SOIL CONTRACTOR: Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
CONTRACT NO. 25279-004-OC2-C000-00001
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is charged as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)

Description of Change: This Change Order No. 012 is issued to incorporate into the Soil Improvement Contract the following:
 
 ● Drilling holes on Dike 1 and the North Dike for Tank Dike Access Road Light Poles (CN-027).
 ● Installation of Envirogrid material on Tank S-104 and S-105 Impound Sump slopes (CN-028).
 ● Construction of the corners of each Tank S-104 and S-105 Sump Aprons as described in CN-029.
 ● Construction of the Temporary Containment Berm in Tank S-105 Impoundment Area (CN-030)
 

Attachments:

 1) Contract Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated June 18, 2009 that supersedes and replaces Exhibit “C”, Quantities, Pricing and Data, dated March 28,
2009 in its entirety.

 

The original contract price was  $  28,526,962.28 
      
Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders  $  -958,374.78 
      
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order  $  28,159,421.54 
      
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order amount of  $  39,173.00 
      
The New Contract Price including this Change Order will be  $  28,198,594.54 

Upon execution of this Change Order by Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial Construction Services, L.P. the above referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of
the original agreement without exception or qualification unless noted in this Change Order.  Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms
and Condition of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.

Purchaser:  Soil Contractor:
Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.  Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
By: Sabine Pass LNG-GP, Inc.,
 Its general partner
 
Authorized Signature:  /s/ Ed Lehotsky   Authorized Signature:  /s/  Tommy Breaux
       
Name:  Ed Lehotsky  Name:  Tommy Breaux
       
Title:  VP LNG Proj Mgt  Title:  Program Manager
       
Date of Signing:  23, Jine 2009  Date of Signing:  24 June 2009
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Exhibit 10.3
 

Execution Version
 

AMENDMENT NO. FOUR-C TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
 

This AMENDMENT NO. FOUR-C TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into, as of June 23, 2009, by Cheniere Common Units Holding, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (the “Borrower”), the Loan Parties, the Lenders and The Bank Of New York Mellon, as administrative agent (in such capacity and together
with its successors, the “Administrative Agent”) and as collateral agent (in such capacity and together with its successors, the “Collateral Agent”).  All capitalized terms used in
this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Credit Agreement (as defined below).
 

Preliminary Statements
 

A.            Borrower has entered into that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2008, by and among the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, certain
affiliates of the Borrower signatory thereto and the Lenders from time to time party thereto (as amended by that certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of
September 15, 2008, Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2008, Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009, Fourth
Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2009, Amendment No. Four-A to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2009, and Amendment No. Four-B to Credit
Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2009, as further amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”);
 

B.             Borrower has notified the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders that it desires to amend the Credit Agreement in order to be permitted
to repurchase certain notes issued pursuant to the CEI Indenture; and
 

C.             Subject to certain conditions as set forth herein, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders are willing to agree to such
amendment relating to the Credit Agreement.
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreements, other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Borrower, the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders, hereby agree as follows:
 
1. Amendments to Section 1.01 (Definitions).  Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following new definitions in proper alphabetical

sequence:
 

“Four-C Amendment” shall mean that certain Amendment No. Four-C to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2009, among Borrower, certain
affiliates of Borrower signatory thereto, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders.

“Four-C Amendment Effective Date” shall mean the date of satisfaction of the conditions referred to in Section 4 of the Four-C Amendment.”
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2. Amendments to Section 6.04 (Investments, Loans and Advances).  Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting clause (f) thereof in its
entirety and replacing it with the following new clause (f):

 
“(f)           Investments in an amount not to exceed $23,525,000 made by CEI with respect to repurchasing certain of the notes issued pursuant to
the CEI Indenture.”.

 
3. Representations and Warranties.   Each Loan Party hereby represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders (which

representations and warranties shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment), as follows:
 
 (a) Absence of Defaults.  No event has occurred and is continuing or will result from the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Amendment

that would constitute a Default or Event of Default after giving effect to this Amendment.
 
 (b) Enforceability.  This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by such Loan Party and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Loan

Party enforceable against such Loan Party in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other
laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

 
 (c) Authorization, No Conflicts.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment by each Loan Party (i) has been duly authorized by all requisite

organizational action of such Loan Party and (ii) will not (A) violate (1) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate or articles of
incorporation or other constitutive documents or by-laws of such Loan Party, (2) any order of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator or (3) any provision
of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which such Loan Party is a party or by which it or any of its property is or may be bound, (B) be in
conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to
require the prepayment, repurchase or redemption of any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (C) result in the creation or
imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired by such Loan Party (other than Liens created under
the Security Documents).

 
4. Effectiveness.  The effectiveness of this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction of each the following conditions precedent:
 
 (a) Execution.  The Administrative Agent shall have received duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Amendment that, when taken together, bear the

signatures of the Loan Parties, the Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent.
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 (b) Representations and Warranties.  The representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all respects.
 
 (c) Necessary Consents.  Each Loan Party shall have obtained all material consents necessary or advisable in connection with the transactions contemplated by

this Amendment.
 
 (d) Fees.  All fees and expense reimbursements payable by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders for which invoices

have been presented shall have been paid in full.
 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Amendment, each Lender by delivering its signature page to this Amendment shall be deemed to have acknowledged
receipt of and consented to and approved the Amendment and each other document required to be approved by any Agent or any Lender, as applicable, on the date such
Lender delivers its signature to this Amendment and the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely on such confirmation.

 
5. Reference to and Effect Upon the Loan Documents.
 
 (a) Except as specifically set forth above, the Credit Agreement and each other Loan Document shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and

confirmed.
 
 (b) Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, the execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power

or remedy of Agents or any Lender under the Loan Documents, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith.

 
 (c) Any reference in any Loan Document to the Credit Agreement shall be a reference to the Credit Agreement as modified by this Amendment, and any

reference in any Loan Document to any other Loan Document shall be a reference to such referenced Loan Document as modified by this Amendment.
 
 (d) This Amendment is a Loan Document.  The provisions of Section 9.15 of the Credit Agreement shall apply with like effect to this Amendment.
 
6. Further Assurances.  Each Loan Party hereby agrees to authorize, execute and deliver all additional instruments, certificates, financing statements, agreements or

documents, and take all such actions as the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or the Required Lenders may reasonably request for the purposes of
implementing or effectuating the provisions of this Amendment.

 
7. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE

OF NEW YORK.
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8. Headings.  Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute part of this Amendment for any other
purposes.

 
9. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed by all parties hereto in any number of separate counterparts each of which may be delivered in original, facsimile or

other electronic (e.g., “.pdf”) form, and all of such counterparts taken together constitute one instrument.
 
10. Severability.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Amendment shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,

such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Amendment shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

 
11. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL

ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.
 
12. Final Agreement of the Parties.  THIS AMENDMENT, THE CREDIT AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL

AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT
ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES.  THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES.

 
[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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Execution Version
 
 CHENIERE COMMON UNITS HOLDING, LLC, as Borrower
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur 
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE CORPUS CHRISTI PIPELINE, L.P., as a Loan Party
   
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 CHENIERE CREOLE TRAIL PIPELINE, L.P., as a Loan Party
   
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE ENERGY OPERATING CO., INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 CHENIERE MIDSTREAM HOLDINGS, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 

 
Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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 CHENIERE PIPELINE COMPANY, as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 CHENIERE PIPELINE GP INTERESTS, LLC, as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE SOUTHERN TRAIL GP, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 CHENIERE SOUTHERN TRAIL PIPELINE, L.P., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 GRAND CHENIERE PIPELINE, LLC, as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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 CHENIERE ENERGY SHARED SERVICES, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE ENERGY, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG HOLDINGS, LLC, as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG O&M SERVICES, LLC, , as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name: Graham A. McArthur
  Title:   Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG TERMINALS, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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 CHENIERE LNG, INC., as a Loan Party
  
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur   
  Name: Graham A. McArthur
  Title:   Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS FUND LP, as a Lender
  
 By:  GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
  
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:George Fan 
 Title Chief Legal Officer 
 
 
 GSO COF FACILITY LLC, as a Lender
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
  
 By: /s/ George Fan  
 Name:George Fan   
 Title: Chief Legal Officer  
 
 
 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS OVERSEAS MASTER FUND LTD, as a Lender
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
   
 By: /s/ George Fan  
 Name:George Fan   
 Title: Chief Legal Officer  
 
 
 BLACKSTONE DISTRESSED SECURITIES FUND L.P.,
  
 By:  Blackstone Distressed Securities Associates L.P., its general partner
 By:  Blackstone DD Associates L.L.C., its general partner
  
 By: /s/ George Fan  
 Name:George Fan 
 Title: Authorized Signatory
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,

as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent
  
 By: /s/ Eddie Wang 
 Name:Eddie Wang 
 Title: V.P. 
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-C
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Exhibit 10.4

Execution Version

AMENDMENT NO. FOUR-D TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT NO. FOUR-D TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into, as of June 29, 2009, by Cheniere Common Units Holding, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (the “Borrower”), the Loan Parties, the Lenders and The Bank Of New York Mellon, as administrative agent (in such capacity and together
with its successors, the “Administrative Agent”) and as collateral agent (in such capacity and together with its successors, the “Collateral Agent”).  All capitalized terms used in
this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Credit Agreement (as defined below).

Preliminary Statements

A.             Borrower has entered into that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2008, by and among the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, certain
affiliates of the Borrower signatory thereto and the Lenders from time to time party thereto (as amended by that certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of
September 15, 2008, Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2008, Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009, Fourth
Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2009, Amendment No. Four-A to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2009, Amendment No. Four-B to Credit
Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2009, and Amendment No. Four-C to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2009, as further amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”);

B.             Borrower has notified the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders that it desires to amend the Credit Agreement in order to be permitted
to repurchase certain notes issued pursuant to the CEI Indenture; and

C.             Subject to certain conditions as set forth herein, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders are willing to agree to such
amendment relating to the Credit Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreements, other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Borrower, the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders, hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendments to Section 1.01 (Definitions).  Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following new definitions in proper alphabetical
sequence:

“Four-D Amendment” shall mean that certain Amendment No. Four-D to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2009, among Borrower, certain
affiliates of Borrower signatory thereto, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders.

“Four-D Amendment Effective Date” shall mean the date of satisfaction of the conditions referred to in Section 4 of the Four-D Amendment.”
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2. Amendments to Section 6.04 (Investments, Loans and Advances).  Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting clause (f) thereof in its
entirety and replacing it with the following new clause (f):

“(f)           Investments in an amount not to exceed $30,000,000 made by CEI with respect to repurchasing certain of the notes issued pursuant to
the CEI Indenture.”.

3. Representations and Warranties.   Each Loan Party hereby represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders (which
representations and warranties shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment), as follows:

 (a) Absence of Defaults.  No event has occurred and is continuing or will result from the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Amendment
that would constitute a Default or Event of Default after giving effect to this Amendment.

 (b) Enforceability.  This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by such Loan Party and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Loan
Party enforceable against such Loan Party in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other
laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

 (c) Authorization, No Conflicts.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment by each Loan Party (i) has been duly authorized by all requisite
organizational action of such Loan Party and (ii) will not (A) violate (1) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate or articles of
incorporation or other constitutive documents or by-laws of such Loan Party, (2) any order of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator or (3) any provision
of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which such Loan Party is a party or by which it or any of its property is or may be bound, (B) be in
conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to
require the prepayment, repurchase or redemption of any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (C) result in the creation or
imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired by such Loan Party (other than Liens created under
the Security Documents).

4. Effectiveness.  The effectiveness of this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction of each the following conditions precedent:

 (a) Execution.  The Administrative Agent shall have received duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Amendment that, when taken together, bear the
signatures of the Loan Parties, the Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent.

 (b) Representations and Warranties.  The representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all respects.
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 (c) Necessary Consents.  Each Loan Party shall have obtained all material consents necessary or advisable in connection with the transactions contemplated by
this Amendment.

 (d) Fees.  All fees and expense reimbursements payable by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders for which invoices
have been presented shall have been paid in full.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Amendment, each Lender by delivering its signature page to this Amendment shall be deemed to have acknowledged
receipt of and consented to and approved the Amendment and each other document required to be approved by any Agent or any Lender, as applicable, on the date such
Lender delivers its signature to this Amendment and the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely on such confirmation.

5. Reference to and Effect Upon the Loan Documents.

 (a) Except as specifically set forth above, the Credit Agreement and each other Loan Document shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and
confirmed.

 (b) Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, the execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power
or remedy of Agents or any Lender under the Loan Documents, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith.

 (c) Any reference in any Loan Document to the Credit Agreement shall be a reference to the Credit Agreement as modified by this Amendment, and any
reference in any Loan Document to any other Loan Document shall be a reference to such referenced Loan Document as modified by this Amendment.

 (d) This Amendment is a Loan Document.  The provisions of Section 9.15 of the Credit Agreement shall apply with like effect to this Amendment.

6. Further Assurances.  Each Loan Party hereby agrees to authorize, execute and deliver all additional instruments, certificates, financing statements, agreements or
documents, and take all such actions as the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or the Required Lenders may reasonably request for the purposes of
implementing or effectuating the provisions of this Amendment.
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7. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK.

8. Headings.  Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute part of this Amendment for any other
purposes.

9. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed by all parties hereto in any number of separate counterparts each of which may be delivered in original, facsimile or
other electronic (e.g., “.pdf”) form, and all of such counterparts taken together constitute one instrument.

10. Severability.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Amendment shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Amendment shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

11. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL
ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.

12. Final Agreement of the Parties.  THIS AMENDMENT, THE CREDIT AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL
AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT
ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES.  THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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Execution Version
 
 CHENIERE COMMON UNITS HOLDING, LLC, as Borrower

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE CORPUS CHRISTI PIPELINE, L.P., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur 
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer

 
 
 CHENIERE CREOLE TRAIL PIPELINE, L.P.,

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 

 
 CHENIERE ENERGY OPERATING CO., INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE MIDSTREAM HOLDINGS, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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 CHENIERE PIPELINE COMPANY, as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE PIPELINE GP INTERESTS, LLC, as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 

 
 CHENIERE SOUTHERN TRAIL GP, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE SOUTHERN TRAIL PIPELINE, L.P., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 GRAND CHENIERE PIPELINE, LLC, as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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 CHENIERE ENERGY SHARED SERVICES, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE ENERGY, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG HOLDINGS, LLC, as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG O&M SERVICES, LLC, , as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 
 
 CHENIERE LNG TERMINALS, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 

 
Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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 CHENIERE LNG, INC., as a Loan Party

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
  Name:  Graham A. McArthur
  Title:    Treasurer
 

 
Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS FUND LP, as a Lender

 
By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
 

 By: /s/ George Fan
 Name: George Fan
 Title:   Chief Legal Officer

 
 
 GSO COF FACILITY LLC, as a Lender

 
By: GSO Capital Partners LP, as Portfolio Manager
 
 

 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name: George Fan 
 Title:   Chief Legal Officer
 
 
 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS OVERSEAS MASTER FUND LTD, as a Lender

 
By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
 

 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name: George Fan
 Title:   Chief Legal Officer
 

 
 BLACKSTONE DISTRESSED SECURITIES FUND L.P.,

 
By: Blackstone Distressed Securities Associates L.P., its General Partner
By: Blackstone DD Associates L.L.C., its General Partner
 

 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name: George Fan
 Title:   Authorized Signatory
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Administrative Agent and Collateral

Agent
 

 By: /s/ Melinda Valentine
 Name: Melinda Valentine
 Title:   Vice President
 
 

Signature Page to Amendment No. Four-D
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Exhibit 10.5

Execution Version

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SECURITY DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO SECURITY DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into, as of June 19, 2009, by Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Holdings”), The Bank Of New York Mellon, a New York banking corporation, in its capacity as agent, bank and securities intermediary
for the secured parties (in such capacity, the “Depositary Agent”) and The Bank Of New York Mellon, a New York banking corporation, as collateral agent (in such capacity and
together with its successors, the “Collateral Agent”).  All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to such terms in
the Depositary Agreement and the Credit Agreement (as each term is defined below).

Preliminary Statements

A.            Holdings has entered into that certain Security Deposit Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2008, by and among Holdings, the Depositary Agent and the
Collateral Agent (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Depositary Agreement”);

 
B.             Holdings has entered into that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2008, by and among Cheniere Common Units Holding, LLC (the

“Borrower”), the Administrative Agent, certain affiliates of the Borrower signatory thereto and the lenders from time to time party thereto (the “Lenders”) (as amended by that
certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 15, 2008, Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2008, Third Amendment to
Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009, Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2009, Amendment No. Four-A to Credit Agreement, dated as of April
27, 2009, and Amendment No. Four-B to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2009, as further amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the
“Credit Agreement”);

C.             Holdings has requested that the Depositary Agreement be amended as herein set forth; and

D.             Subject to certain conditions as set forth herein, the Depositary Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders party hereto are willing to agree to such
amendments relating to the Depositary Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreements, other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Holdings, the Depositary Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders, hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendments to Section 1.1 (Definitions).  Section 1.1 of the Depositary Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following new definition in proper alphabetical
sequence:
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“First Amendment” shall mean that certain First Amendment to Depositary Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2009, among Holdings, the Depositary
Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Required Lenders.

2. Amendments to Section 3.1(b) (Disbursements from the TUA Reserve Account).  Section 3.1(b) of the Depositary Agreement is hereby amended by deleting clause
(ii) thereof in its entirety and replacing it with the following new clause (ii):

“(ii)          At any time following the first date that the first full monthly payment under the Chevron TUA has been received, funds in the Account
in excess of the amount required to make the next three monthly payments under the CMI TUA may be disbursed from the Account to pay
distributions to Holdings or another Loan Party; provided that (i) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and (ii)(A) each time a
disbursement from the Account is made pursuant to this Section 3.1(b)(ii), a duly completed and executed Withdrawal Certificate and Financial
Officer’s Certificate has been delivered certifying that (1) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, (2) Section 4.08 of the Sabine
Indenture does not prohibit the making of distributions by Sabine, (3) such Financial Officer has no knowledge of any circumstance or event that
could reasonably be expected to cause Sabine not to be able to make a distribution during the calendar quarter immediately following the delivery
of such certificate and (4) such Financial Officer has no knowledge of any circumstance or event that could reasonably be expected to cause CQP
not to make a distribution during such following calendar quarter at least equal to the 42.5 cents per share on all common, subordinated and
general partner units outstanding; and (B) in addition to the requirements of clause (ii)(A) of this proviso, each time a disbursement from the
Account is made pursuant to this Section 3.1(b)(ii) on or prior to the release of the Distribution Funds (defined below) a duly completed and
executed Withdrawal Certificate and Financial Officer’s Certificate has been delivered certifying that CQP has funds on deposit in the
Distribution Reserve Account in an amount not less than $34,800,000 (the “Distribution Funds”), and that the Distribution Funds will be released
and distributed to the TUA Reserve Account on or prior to August 14, 2009.”.

3. Representations and Warranties.  Holdings hereby represents and warrants to the Collateral Agent, the Depositary Agent, and the Lenders (which representations and
warranties shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment), as follows:

 (a) Absence of Defaults.  No event has occurred and is continuing or will result from the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Amendment
that would constitute a Default or Event of Default after giving effect to this Amendment.
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 (b) Enforceability.  This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by Holdings and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Holdings
enforceable against Holdings in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting
creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

 (c) Authorization, No Conflicts.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment by Holdings (i) has been duly authorized by all requisite
organizational action of Holdings and (ii) will not (A) violate (1) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate or articles of
incorporation or other constitutive documents or by-laws of Holdings, (2) any order of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator or (3) any provision of any
indenture, agreement or other instrument to which Holdings is a party or by which it or any of its property is or may be bound, (B) be in conflict with, result
in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to require the prepayment,
repurchase or redemption of any obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (C) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien
upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired by Holdings (other than Liens created under the Security Documents).

4. Effectiveness.  The effectiveness of this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction of each the following conditions precedent:

 (a) Execution.  The Collateral Agent shall have received duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Amendment that, when taken together, bear the
signatures of Holdings, the Required Lenders, the Depositary Agent and the Collateral Agent.

 (b) Representations and Warranties.  The representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all respects.

 (c) Necessary Consents.  Holdings shall have obtained all material consents necessary or advisable in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Amendment.

 (d) Fees.  All fees and expense reimbursements payable by Holdings to the Collateral Agent and the Lenders for which invoices have been presented shall have
been paid in full.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Amendment, each Lender by delivering its signature page to this Amendment shall be deemed to have acknowledged
receipt of and consented to and approved the Amendment and each other document required to be approved by any Agent or any Lender, as applicable, on the date such
Lender delivers its signature to this Amendment and the Collateral Agent shall be entitled to rely on such confirmation.

5. Reference to and Effect Upon the Loan Documents.
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 (a) Except as specifically set forth above, the Depositary Agreement and each other Loan Document shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified
and confirmed.

 (b) Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, the execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power
or remedy of Agents or any Lender under the Loan Documents, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith.

 (c) Any reference in any Loan Document to the Depositary Agreement shall be a reference to the Depositary Agreement as modified by this Amendment, and
any reference in any Loan Document to any other Loan Document shall be a reference to such referenced Loan Document as modified by this Amendment.

 (d) This Amendment is a Loan Document.  The provisions of Section 6.3(b) and (c) of the Depositary Agreement shall apply with like effect to this Amendment
and are incorporated herein by reference.

6. Further Assurances.  Holdings hereby agrees to authorize, execute and deliver all additional instruments, certificates, financing statements, agreements or documents,
and take all such actions as the Depositary Agent, the Collateral Agent or the Required Lenders may reasonably request for the purposes of implementing or
effectuating the provisions of this Amendment.

7. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK EXCLUDING CHOICE OF LAW PRINCIPLES OF SUCH LAWS
(OTHER THAN SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW).

8. Headings.  Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute part of this Amendment for any other
purposes.

9. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed by all parties hereto in any number of separate counterparts each of which may be delivered in original, facsimile or
other electronic (e.g., “.pdf”) form, and all of such counterparts taken together constitute one instrument.

10. Severability.  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Amendment shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Amendment shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

11. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL
ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.
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12. Final Agreement of the Parties.  THIS AMENDMENT, THE DEPOSITARY AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL
AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT
ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES.  THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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 CHENIERE LNG HOLDINGS, LLC

 
 By: /s/ Graham A. McArthur
 Name: Graham A. McArthur
 Title:   Treasurer
 
 

Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, not

individually but solely in its capacity as Depositary
Agent and Collateral Agent
 

 By: /s/ Melinda Valentine 
 Name:  Melinda Valentine
 Title:    Vice President
 
 

Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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The undersigned, as Lenders under the Credit Agreement, hereby consent and agree to the foregoing Amendment.
 
 
 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS FUND LP, as a Lender
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
  
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:  George Fan
 Title:    Chief Legal Officer
 
 
 GSO COF FACILITY LLC, as a Lender
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, as Investment Manager
   
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:  George Fan
 Title:    Chief Legal Officer
 
 
 GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS OVERSEAS MASTER FUND LTD, as a Lender
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
  
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:  George Fan
 Title:    Chief Legal Officer
 
 

Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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 GSO CREDIT OPPORTUNITIES FUND (HELIOS), L.P.
  
 By: GSO Capital Partners LP, its Investment Manager
  
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:     George Fan 
 Title:       Chief Legal Officer
 
 
 BLACKSTONE DISTRESSED SECURITIES FUND L.P.,
  
 By: Blackstone Distressed Securities Associates L.P., its general partner
 By:  Blackstone DD Associates L.L.C., its general partner
  
 By: /s/ George Fan 
 Name:    George Fan
 Title:     Authorized Signatory

 
Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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 SCORPION CAPITAL PARTNERS, LP,
  
 By:  Scorpion GP, LLC
  
 By: /s/ Kevin R. McCarthy 
 Name:   Kevin R. McCarthy
 Title:     Manager
 

Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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 INVESTMENT PARTNERS II (A), LLC
  
 By: BAA Co-Investment Fund II (GenPar)
 LLC, its managing member
  
 By: BlackRock Alternative Advisors GP
 Holdings, LLC, its sole member
  
 By: BlackRock Financial Management,
 Inc., its managing member
  
  
 By: /s/  Robert S. Ellsworth, Jr.
 Name:  Robert S. Ellsworth, Jr.
 Title:    Managing Director
 
  
 By: /s/ Marie M. Bender 
 Name:  Marie M. Bender
 Title:    Managing Director
 

 
Signature Page to First Amendment to Depositary Agreement
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EXHIBIT 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT

 
I, Charif Souki, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
  

/s/    CHARIF SOUKI         
Charif Souki  

Chief Executive Officer, President & Chairman of
the Board

 

 
 
 Date: August 6, 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.2

 
 

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT

 
I, Meg A. Gentle, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
  

/S/    MEG A. GENTLE         
Meg A. Gentle  

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer  
 
Date: August 6, 2009
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Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2009 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Charif Souki, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
 
  

/s/    CHARIF SOUKI         
Charif Souki  

Chief Executive Officer, President &
Chairman of the Board

 

 
 Date: August 6, 2009
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Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2009 as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Meg A. Gentle, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
  

/S/    MEG A. GENTLE         
Meg A. Gentle  

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial
Officer

 

 
 Date: August 6, 2009
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